Community Program Planning
Process
FY 2018-19 Update
MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan

CPPP in 2017 - CPAW
• Monthly CPAW meetings
–
–
–
–

Provided input to MHSA Three Year Plan and Budget
Planned and hosted three community forums
Advised Director’s Office on developments within CCBHS
Dialogued with leaders of emerging programs
•
•
•
•
•
•

Mental Health Evaluation Team
First Break Program
Coordinated Entry System
Drug Medi-Cal Program
Mental Health First Aid
Crisis Intervention Treatment Training

– Updated on other stakeholder committee activities
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CPAW Sub-Committees
– Steering – developed CPAW agendas
– Membership – seven new CPAW members appointed
– Innovation – participated in
• Development of two new Innovative Projects – CBSST, CORE
• Oversight of six ongoing Innovative Projects

– Systems of Care – assisted in the development of
•
•
•
•

Family Volunteer Support Network
Mental Health First Aid
Loan Repayment Program
No Place Like Home/Special Needs Housing Program
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Mental Health Community Forums
• Theme:

Meet and dialogue with service providers
in your community
• Attendance:
- OCT 5 – Richmond – 107
- OCT 25 – Martinez – 92
- DEC 7 – Brentwood - 82
• Composition:
- 24% Consumers
- 23% Family Members
- 38% Service Providers
- 17% Community Members
• Evaluation:
82% of attendees indicated that the
forums met the overall objectives
4

Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #1
• Service Need: What should housing and homeless services
look like? (last year: #1)
• Suggested Strategies:
– Put multi-disciplinary teams at housing site – include
conservatorship, medication support and child care as
needed
– Include food, clothing, health and dental needs
– Have AA and NA groups available and accessible
– Provide Mental Health First Aid training to all non-clinical
persons involved
– Counter “NIMBY” with advocacy and education
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Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #2
• Service Need: How can care for my culture/community/age
group be improved? (last year: #9)
• Suggested Strategies:
– Dialogue with local communities/cultures/age groups to
define what works for them and then train service
providers, to include Access Line staff
– Increase number of competent translators
– Need more service providers who look like us, share our
values, and are from the community they serve
– Don’t let paperwork, eligibility (like Medi-Cal) get in the
way of immediate caring response
– Better educate people who are undocumented about what
mental health services are available
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Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #3
• Service Need: What should support for family members look
like? (last year #2)
• Suggested Strategies:

– Serve and support the whole family, not just the identified
patient
– Families need help with what is out there, how to access it, and
how to navigate through the system
– Need more volunteers that can represent the needs of my
culture and community
– Support re-unification of families with their loved ones
– More NAMI Family to Family classes throughout the county
– Provide more education about mental health issues to kids who
are in school.
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Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #4
• Service Need: How can we improve our response to trauma
and crisis? (last year: # 6)
• Suggested Strategies:
– Need a rapid response from our care providers
– Need a recognized forum to report and share in response
to traumatic events in the community
– Provide trauma informed services early to avoid symptoms
from becoming chronic and severe
– More safe places for youth, especially LBGTQ youth
– PES should utilize the entire 72 hour hold before releasing
someone
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Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #5
• Service Need: How can we improve access? (last year: #7)
• Suggested Strategies:

– Improve call system so people are not re-directed and go in
circles
– Better educate Access Line staff about services available in the
community
– Strengthen peer and family support to help access and navigate
the system
– Broaden service providers’ scope of work so they can dually
serve mental health and substance abuse problems
– All service providers should keep current as to what is available
in the community, how to access services, and then help
connect to these resources
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Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #6
• Service Need: How can mental health, substance abuse
services, homeless services and primary care better
coordinate with each other? (last year: #5)
• Suggested Strategies:

– Providers should use language with each other that respects
that they are dealing with people and not just objects
– Providers shouldn’t be so rushed, and should prioritize time to
coordinate with each other
– Providers should listen and share with each other when clients
report problems with medications, such as not working or too
strong or causing bad side effects
– Agree upon the intent and flexibility allowed in HIPAA laws and
regulations
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Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #7
• Service Need: How do we best respond to transportation
challenges? (last year: #11)
• Suggested Strategies:
– Dedicate staff time to advocate for more accommodating
schedules, locations with public transit entities
– Provide more education, training on how to use public
transit
– Provide bus passes, clipper cards, BART tickets when a
person cannot afford the cost
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Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #8
• Service Need: How do we prevent first psychotic episodes
from becoming a lifelong debilitating illness? (last year: #10)
• Suggested Strategies:
– More education in schools for teachers, parents and kids
regarding mental health and where and now to access
resources
– Especially educate young people who appear normal to be
pro-active instead of waiting for a psychotic episode
– Recognize the prevalent influence of substance abuse on
youths’ mental health and treat both together
– Establish a safe supportive environment to help recover
from a first episode
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Prioritized Unmet Needs and
Suggested Strategies - #9
• Service Need: How do we best respond to children who need
in-patient or crisis residential services? (last year: #4)
• Suggested Strategies:
– Need more residential services for children
– Conduct a listening survey with families of children who
may need in-patient residential care as to what they need
– Increase staffing for mobile response teams
– Partner better with law enforcement to provide a more
effective, coordinated response to seriously emotionally
disturbed children who are at risk for being restrained
– Develop safety plans for families of at risk children
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Other Prioritized Unmet Service Needs
#10 - Serve those who need it the most (last year’s
rank: #13)
#11 - Support for peer and family partner providers
(last year’s rank: #7)
#12 - Increased psychiatry time (last year’s rank:
unranked)
#13 - Care for the homebound frail and elderly (last
year’s rank: 12)
#14 - Assistance with meaningful activity (last year’s
rank #10)
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Evaluating 2017 and Planning Ahead
• What did we do well?
• What do we need to improve upon?
• What do we need to do differently?
– CPAW meetings – structure, content
– CPAW sub-committees
– Community Forums
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Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services

Community Program Planning Process
for the
Mental Health Services Act
Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan Update
for
Fiscal Year 2018-19
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The Community Program Planning Process
Each year CCBHS utilizes a community program planning process to 1) identify issues
related to mental illness that result from a lack of mental health services and supports,
2) analyze mental health needs, and 3) identify priorities and strategies to meet these
mental health needs.
CPAW. CCBHS continues to seek counsel from its ongoing stakeholder body, entitled
the Consolidated Planning Advisory Workgroup (CPAW). Over the years CPAW
members, consisting of consumers, family members, service providers and
representative community members, have provided input to the Behavioral Health
Services Director as each Three Year Plan and yearly Plan Update has been developed
and implemented. CPAW has recommended that the Three Year Plan provide a
comprehensive approach that links MHSA funded services and supports to prioritized
needs, evaluates their effectiveness and fidelity to the intent of the Act, and informs
future use of MHSA funds. CPAW has also recommended that each year’s Community
Program Planning Process build upon and further what was learned in previous years.
Thus the Three Year Plan can provide direction for continually improving not only MHSA
funded services, but also influencing the County’s entire Behavioral Health Services
Division. In addition, CPAW utilizes part of its monthly meeting time to be the planning
and implementation resource for fielding each year’s Community Forums.
Community Forums for Fiscal Year 2018-19
The theme for this year’s venue was for interested individuals to meet and dialogue with
service providers located in their community; specifically those programs funded to
provide outreach and engagement to underserved areas and populations.
Approximately 280 individuals attended three forums in the fall of 2017 (October 5 in
Richmond – West County, October 25 in Martinez – Central County, and December 7 in
Brentwood – East County), and self-identified as one or more of the following:





24% - a consumer of mental health services
23% - a family member of a consumer of services
38% - a provider of mental health services
17% - an interested member of the community

Small Group Discussions. Participants actively discussed via small groups topical
issues that were developed by CPAW representatives prior to the forums. Highlights
of suggested strategies include:
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What should housing and homeless services look like for persons with
serious mental illness?
o Put multi-disciplinary behavioral health teams on site of apartment
buildings specifically for persons who are homeless and seriously mentally
ill.
o Provide life, social skills and job coaching on site to families experiencing
crises so that they do not get evicted or lose custody of their children.
o Be sure to include food, clothing, health and dental care, as persons who
are homeless lack these essentials.
o Provide onsite child care to enable parents to work or go to school.
o Link transitional housing opportunities that are time limited to permanent
supportive housing.
o Increase board and care facilities in the community with funding
augmentation for supporting residents with mental illness.
o Bring medication support to the housing sites.
o Have more AA and NA groups available and accessible.
o House the population needing conservatorship services.
o Need to sort out the issue of persons being housed who are still drinking
or using drugs versus those individuals needing/wanting to stay sober.
o Provide Mental Health First Aid training to all non-clinical persons involved
in supportive housing.
o Make sure tiny housing communities (micro-pods) are connected to
mental health services.
o Help put supportive services higher on the political agenda for housing
funding.
o Push back with advocacy and education to communities who are rejecting
supportive housing in their neighborhood.
o Gentrification is making housing costs too expensive. We can’t live or
work in our community. We need strategies to offset this.
o Who is in charge of the projects?
How can care for my culture/community/age group be improved?
o Dialogue with different communities to define strategies that work for
them.
o Stress service provider trainings that are sensitive to diverse local
cultures.
o Need more translators and shorten wait times.
o Need more service providers who look like us, share our values, and are
from the community they serve.
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o Access Line needs to be sensitive to the fact that some people are
reluctant to share mental health symptoms and personal information over
the phone.
o Re-visit what is meant by terms “culture” and “community”.
o There are no psychiatrists that are my color.
o Need more people who speak Spanish.
o Need more outreach to the African American community, especially young
males.
o LBGTQ youth and elderly are marginal and need to feel more safe.
o People who live on the streets are their own culture and don’t get services.
o Young people get discouraged because of barriers (like Medi-Cal) and
wait times.
o Activities for children need to be more affordable for their parents.
o Better educate people who are undocumented about what mental health
services are available.
What should support look like for family members who are struggling with
loved ones who are experiencing mental health challenges?
o Serve and support the whole family, not just the identified person
experiencing mental health issues.
o Families need help with what is out there, how to access services, and
how to navigate through the system.
o We need more volunteers that can represent the needs of my culture and
community.
o Support re-unification of families with their loved ones.
o Increase NAMI’s Family to Family classes throughout the county.
o Provide more education about mental health issues to the kids who are in
school. Most families have school age children.
How can we as a community improve our response to trauma and crisis?
o Need a rapid response from care providers trained to respond to trauma.
o Need a recognized forum to report and vent in response to traumatic
events in the community – should be manned at all times.
o Provide support when people are not experiencing a crisis would help.
o It is important to provide services early to avoid symptoms from becoming
more severe.
o We need more safe places for our youth and young adults, especially
LBGTQ youth.
o Need a way to capture data regarding traumatic events in the community.
o Psychiatric Emergency Services (PES) should utilize the entire 72 hour
hold, and not release a person before they are stabilized.
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o Increase mental health response in schools. Collaborate better with
educators.
o All service providers should be trained and comfortable in asking about
and responding to trauma and violence experienced by a client.
o Share videos that address how to respond to trauma.
o Need to advocate for more funding for survivors/victims of violence and
trauma.
How can we improve access to mental health and medical services?
o Improve accessibility with language providers, more information and
education about local services.
o Need more doctors available in my community.
o Improve call system so people are not re-directed and go in circles, or put
on hold for long periods so they hang up before getting help..
o Better educate CCBHS Access Line staff about existing behavioral health
services in the community so that they can refer callers to multiple
resources.
o Strengthen peer and family member support, whether paid or volunteer, to
help access and navigate the system.
o Persons dually diagnosed (drug/alcohol and mental health) are turned
away because they don’t have the “right” diagnosis for the service
provider. Broaden providers’ scope of work.
o All service providers need to continually educate themselves as to the full
spectrum of resources available in their community, who they serve, how
to access them, and then help connect their clients to these resources.
How can providers of mental health, substance abuse disorders, homeless
services and primary care better communicate and coordinate with each
other?
o Providers should communicate with each other using language that
respects that they are dealing with people, and not just objects.
o Providers shouldn’t be so rushed, and should prioritize time to collaborate
with each other.
o Providers should listen and share with each other when clients report
problems with medications, such as not working or too strong or causing
bad side effects.
o Agree upon the intent and flexibility allowed in HIPAA laws and regulations
(client’s right to privacy).
How do we better respond to the various transportation challenges our
clients and their families face in getting to and from services?
o Dedicate staff time to regularly advocate for more and better public
transportation services.
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o Provide transportation for free when someone has no money, such as bus
passes, clipper cards and BART tickets.
o Provide more education on bus routes, schedules and other means of
transportation, such as bike routes, and training on how to use them.
o Advocate for County Connection to provide transportation services on
holidays.
o Advocate for AC Transit’s bus schedule to expand at nights and
weekends.
o Advocate for all bus benches to have hang overs for waiting in bad
weather.
o Have the busses add stops within walking distance to key public services,
such as food pantries; or add a van service specifically for this purpose




How do we prevent first psychotic episodes from becoming a lifelong
debilitating illness?
o A safe, supportive environment like Putnam Clubhouse helped me
recover from my first psychotic episode.
o Experiencing homelessness can trigger a psychotic episode. Help finding
a home can prevent psychosis.
o Education in schools for teachers, parents and kids regarding mental
health and how and where to access resources can be de-stigmatizing,
and encourage getting help before psychosis sets in.
o Especially educate young people who are high functioning and appear
normal to be pro-active about getting help, instead of waiting for a
psychotic episode.
o Recognize the prevalent influence of substance abuse on youth’s mental
health, and treat both together and appropriately.
How do we best respond to seriously emotionally disturbed children and
youth who need in-patient or crisis residential services?
o Need more residential services for children. MHSA can provide one-time
funding to establish an in-patient or residential facility.
o Conduct a listening survey with families of children who may need inpatient or residential services as to what they need.
o Increase staffing for mobile response teams.
o Partner with law enforcement to provide a more effective, coordinated
response to seriously emotionally disturbed children who are reported as
at risk for being restrained.
o Develop safety plans for families of at risk children.
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Prioritizing Identified Unmet Needs. As part of each community forum participants
were then asked to prioritize via applying dot markers the following identified unmet
needs from previous years’ community program planning processes. This provides a
means for evaluating perceived impact over time of implemented strategies to meet
prioritized needs. Thus, service needs determined to be unmet in previous years can
drop in ranking as the system successfully addresses these needs. Unmet needs are
listed in order of priority as determined by forum participants, with previous Three Year
Plan rankings provided for comparison.
1. More housing and homeless services. (last year’s rank: 1) The chronic lack
of affordable housing make this a critical factor that affects the mental health
and well-being of all individuals with limited means. However, it is especially
deleterious for an individual and his/her family who are also struggling with a
serious mental illness. A range of strategies that would increase housing
availability include increasing transitional beds, housing vouchers, supportive
housing services, permanent housing units with mental health supports, staff
assistance to locate and secure housing in the community, and coordination of
effort between Health, Housing and Homeless Services and CCBHS.
2. Outreach to the underserved – provide care in my community, in my
culture, in my language. (last year’s rank: 9) Focus groups underscored that
mental health stigma and non-dominant culture differences continue to provide
barriers to seeking and sustaining mental health care. Emphasis should
continue on recruiting and retaining cultural and linguistically competent service
providers, training and technical assistance emphasis on treating the whole
person, and the importance of providing on-going staff training on cultural
specific treatment modalities. Also, culture-specific service providers providing
outreach and engagement should assist their consumers navigate all levels of
service that is provided in the behavioral health system. Transition age youth, to
include lesbian, gay, bi-sexual, transgender and questioning youth, who live in
at-risk environments feel particularly vulnerable to physical harassment and
bullying. Stakeholders continued to emphasize MHSA’s role in funding access
to all levels of service for those individuals who are poor and not Medi-Cal
eligible.
3. More support for family members and loved ones of consumers. (last
year’s rank: 2) Critical to successful treatment is the need for service providers
to partner with family members and significant others of loved ones experiencing
mental illness. Stakeholders continued to underscore the need to provide
families and significant others with education and training, emotional support,
and assistance with navigating the system.
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4. Improved response to crisis and trauma. (last year’s rank: 6) Response to
crisis situations occurring in the community needs to be improved for both adults
and children. Crisis response now primarily consists of psychiatric emergency
services located at the Contra Costa Regional Medical Center (CCRMC). There
are few more appropriate and less costly alternatives.
5. Connecting with the right service providers in your community when you
need it. (last year’s rank: 7) Mental health and its allied providers, such as
primary care, alcohol and other drug services, housing and homeless services,
vocational services, educational settings, social services and the criminal justice
system provide a complexity of eligibility and paperwork requirements that can
be defeating. Just knowing what and where services are can be a challenge.
Easy access to friendly, knowledgeable individuals who can ensure connection
to appropriate services is critical.
6. Better coordination of care between providers of mental health, substance
use disorders, homeless services and primary care. (last year’s rank: 5)
Integrating mental health, primary care, drug and alcohol, homeless services
and employment services through a coordinated, multi-disciplinary team
approach has been proven effective for those consumers fortunate to have this
available. Often cited by consumers and their families was the experience of
being left on their own to find and coordinate services, and to understand and
navigate the myriad of eligibility and paperwork issues that characterize different
service systems. Also cited was the difficulty of coordinating education, social
services and the criminal justice systems to act in concert with the behavioral
health system.
7. Getting to and from services. (last year’s rank: 11) The cost of transportation
and the County’s geographical challenges make access to services a continuing
priority. Flexible financial assistance with both public and private transportation,
training on how to use public transportation, driving individuals to and from
appointments, and bringing services to where individuals are located, are all
strategies needing strengthening and coordinating.
8. Intervening early in psychosis. (Previous rank: 10) Teenagers and young
adults experiencing a first psychotic episode are at risk for becoming lifelong
consumers of the public mental health system. Evidence based practices are
now available that can successfully address this population by applying an
intensive multi-disciplinary, family based approach. A proposed strategy is to
expand the target population now served by Project First Hope from youth at
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risk for experiencing a psychotic episode to include those who have experienced
a “first break”.
9. Children and youth in-patient and residential beds. (last year’s rank: 4) Inpatient beds and residential services for children needing intensive psychiatric
care are not available in the county, and are difficult to find outside the county.
This creates a significant hardship on families who can and should be part of the
treatment plan, and inappropriately strains care providers of more temporary
(such as psychiatric emergency services) or less acute levels of treatment (such
as Children’s’ clinics) to respond to needs they are ill equipped to address.
Additional funding outside the Mental Health Services Act Fund would be
needed to add this resource to the County, as in-patient psychiatric
hospitalization is outside the scope of MHSA.
10. Serve those who need it the most. (last year’s rank: 13) Through MHSA
funding the County has developed designated programs for individuals with
serious mental illness who have been deemed to be in need of a full spectrum of
services. These are described in the full service partnership category of the
Community Services and Supports component. In spite of these programs,
stakeholders report that a number of individuals who have been most debilitated
by the effects of mental illness continue to cycle through the most costly levels
of care without success.
11. Support for peer and family partner providers. (last year’s rank: 7) CCBHS
was acknowledged for hiring individuals who bring lived experience as
consumers and/or family members of consumers. Their contributions have
clearly assisted the County to move toward a more client and family member
directed, recovery focused system of care. However, these individuals have
noted the high incidence of turnover among their colleagues due to exacerbation
of mental health issues brought on by work stressors, and lack of support for
career progression. Individuals in recovery who are employed need ongoing
supports that assist with career progression, and normalizes respites due to
relapses.
12. Increased psychiatry time. (last year: unranked) Stakeholders reported long
waiting periods before they could see a psychiatrist. This is confirmed by the
quantitative workforce needs analysis that indicates a significant shortage of
psychiatrists to fill authorized county and contract positions. This leads to a lack
of needed psychotropic medication prescriptions, lack of time for psychiatrists to
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work as part of the treatment team, and a compromised ability to monitor and
regulate proper dosages.
13. Care for the homebound frail and elderly. (last year’s rank: 12) Services for
older adults continue to struggle with providing effective treatment for those
individuals who are homebound and suffer from multiple physical and mental
impairments. Often these individuals cycle through psychiatric emergency care
without resolution.
14. Assistance with meaningful activity. (last year’s rank: 10) Stakeholders
underscored the value of engaging in meaningful activity as an essential
element of a treatment plan. Youth in high risk environments who are
transitioning to adulthood were consistently noted as a high priority. For prevocational activities, suggested strategies include providing career guidance,
assistance with eliminating barriers to employment, and assistance with
educational, training and volunteer activities that improve job readiness.
Stakeholders highlighted the need for better linkage to existing employment
services, such as job seeking, placement and job retention assistance. For daily
living skills, suggested strategies include assistance with money and benefits
management, and improving health, nutrition, transportation, cooking, cleaning
and home maintenance skill sets.
Summary. The community program planning process identifies current and ongoing
mental health service needs, and provides direction for MHSA funded programs to
address these needs. It also informs planning and evaluation efforts that can influence
how and where MHSA resources can be directed in the future.
The full complement of MHSA funded programs and plan elements described in this
document are the result of current as well as previous community program planning
processes. Thus, this year’s planning process builds upon previous ones. It is
important to note that stakeholders did not restrict their input to only MHSA funded
services, but addressed the entire health and behavioral health system. The MHSA
Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan operates within the laws and regulations
provided for the use of the Mental Health Services Act Fund. Thus, the Three Year
Plan contained herein does not address all of the prioritized needs identified in the
community program planning process, but does provide a framework for improving
existing services and implementing additional programs as funding permits.
The following chapters contain programs and plan elements that are funded by the
County’s MHSA Fund, and will be evaluated by how well they address the Three Year
Plan’s Vision and identified needs as prioritized by the Community Program Planning
Process.
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MHSA Monthly Budget Report
Fiscal Year 2017‐18
July 2017 through June 2018
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Summary
Approved MHSA Budget
CSS
PEI
INN
WET
CF/ TN
TOTAL

Projected Expenditure

37,602,567
8,668,448
2,120,229
2,539,664
643,835
51,574,743

Expenditures

37,175,083
8,323,929
2,131,829
2,298,305
643,835
50,572,981

5,707,693
1,282,011
316,271
119,774
275
7,426,023

Approved MHSA Budget means the funds set aside, or budgeted, for a particular line item prior to the start of the fiscal year.
Projected Expenditures means the funds that are estimated to be spent by the end of the fiscal year.
Expenditures means the funds actually spent in the fiscal year by the end of the month for which the report was made

Disclosures:
1) Cost Centers are used to track expenditures. MHSA cost centers are: 5713, 5714, 5715, 5721, 5722, 5723, 5724, 5725, 5727, 5735, 5753,
5764, 5868, 5957. MHSA program plan elements include expenditures from multiple MHSA cost centers. Therefore, expenditures reported
in the County's Expenditure Detail Report may not tie exactly to the MHSA program plan elements.
2) Various projected expenditures are based on rolling average of actual expenses.
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CSS Summary
Approved MHSA Budget

Projected Expenditures

Expenditures

Full Service Partnerships
Children
Transition Age Youth
Adults
Adult Clinic FSP Support
Recovery Center
Hope House
Housing Services
Full Service Partnership Sub‐Total

2,798,275
2,407,611
5,288,696
1,772,145
901,250
2,077,530
8,502,116
23,747,623

2,813,651
2,117,372
5,244,981
1,642,881
1,190,687
2,116,241
8,413,307
23,539,119

592,598
191,863
737,286
294,453
144,753
529,060
786,097
3,276,110

General System Development
Older Adults
Children's Wraparound
Assessment and Recovery Center ‐ Miller Wellness Center
Clinic Support
Forensic Team
Mobile Response Team
MH Clinicians in Concord Health Center
EPSDT Expansion
Quality Assurance
Administrative Support
General System Development Sub‐Total

3,388,068
1,669,810
319,819
1,355,630
424,628
550,000
281,686
2,500,000
1,255,831
2,109,471
13,854,943

3,699,439
1,547,623
321,347
1,190,558
356,753
550,000
74,610
2,500,000
1,154,787
2,240,847
13,635,963

857,631
349,304
6
261,668
71,357
‐
18,652
‐
236,195
636,769
2,431,583

37,602,567

37,175,083

5,707,693
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CSS‐ FSP Children

Personal Service Coordinators‐ Seneca
Multi‐dimensional Family Therapy‐ Lincoln Center
Multi‐systemic Therapy‐ COFY
Children's Clinic Staff‐ County Staff
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
808,215
556,973
689,585
743,502
2,798,275

Projected Expenditures
797,411
562,567
689,585
764,088
2,813,651

Expenditures
110,743
137,831
199,305
144,719
592,598

1

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.

Z:\BEHAVIORAL HEALTH\MHSA\17‐18\Projection\0917 MHSA v20917 MHSA v2
Reviewed by Faye Ny

Page 4
Prepared by Miu Tam

CSS‐ FSP Transition Age Youth

Fred Finch Youth Center
Youth Homes
Oak Grove
Misc. Costs
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
1,442,661
684,950
250,000
30,000
2,407,611

Projected Expenditures
1,250,559
599,553
250,000
17,260
2,117,372

Expenditures
188,986
‐
‐
2,877
191,863

1
1
1
2

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.

2) Certain county‐operated programs are staffed by individuals assigned to various departments (cost centers). Since this report is based on specific program elements, expenditures for these programs should be considered
reasonable estimates. Although this may give the appearance that a specific program is underfunded or overfunded, the total expenditures reported accurately reflects all MHSA related program costs.
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CSS‐ FSP Adults‐ Agency Contracts

Assisted Outpatient Treatment
Anka
Familias Unidas (Desarrollo)
Hume Center
Crestwood Behavioral Health
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
2,392,241
791,751
213,309
1,891,395
‐
5,288,696

Projected Expenditures
2,116,496
754,501
245,286
2,025,059
103,639
5,244,981

Expenditures
362,339
110,999
19,429
227,245
17,273
737,286

1
1
1
1
1

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.
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CSS‐ Supporting FSPs
Approved MHSA Budget
Adult Clinic Support
FSP Support, Rapid Access, Wellness Nurses
Recovery Centers‐ Recovery Innovation
Hope House‐ Crisis Residential Program
Total

1,772,145
901,250
2,077,530
4,750,925

Projected Expenditures
1,642,881
1,190,687
2,116,241
4,949,809

Expenditures
294,453
144,753
529,060
968,266

1
1

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.
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CSS‐ Supporting FSPs
Housing Services
Supporting Housing‐ Shelter, Inc
Special Needs Housing Program
Supporting Housing‐ TBD
Augmented Board & Care ‐ Crestwood
Augmented Board & Care ‐ Divines
Augmented Board & Care ‐ Modesto Residential
Augmented Board & Care ‐ Oak Hills
Augmented Board & Care ‐ Pleasant Hill Manor
Augmented Board & Care ‐ United Family Care
Augmented Board & Care ‐ Williams
Augmented Board & Care ‐ Woodhaven
Shelter Beds‐ County Operated
Housing Coordination Team ‐ County Staff
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
2,281,484
1,722,486
220,000
1,140,877
5,184
71,175
16,315
92,700
453,840
31,889
12,360
1,931,296
522,510
8,502,116

Projected Expenditures
2,536,812
1,722,486
‐
1,076,985
1,776
77,353
16,315
87,354
414,725
30,448
9,135
1,931,296
508,621
8,413,307

Expenditures
‐
‐
‐
131,731
456
18,915
4,079
22,320
92,979
7,529
2,318
401,791
103,979
786,097

1
1
2
1

3

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.
2) Supporting Housing is in planning phrase.

3) Certain county‐operated programs are staffed by individuals assigned to various departments (cost centers). Since this report is based on specific program elements, expenditures for these programs should be considered
reasonable estimates. Although this may give the appearance that a specific program is underfunded or overfunded, the total expenditures reported accurately reflects all MHSA related program costs.
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CSS‐ General System Development Services

Older Adult Clinic ‐ Intensive Care Management, IMPACT
Wraparound Support ‐ Children's Clinic
Assessment and Recovery Center (MWC)
Money Management ‐ Adult Clinics
Transportation Support ‐ Adult Clinics
Evidence Based Practices ‐ Children's Clinics
Forensic Team ‐ County Operated
Mobile Response Team
MH Clinicians in Concord Health Center
EPSDT Expansion
Misc. Costs
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
3,388,068
1,669,810
319,819
779,316
151,951
424,363
424,628
550,000
281,686
2,500,000
‐
10,489,641

Projected Expenditures
3,699,439
1,547,623
321,347
607,667
124,930
358,313
356,753
550,000
74,610
2,500,000
99,648
10,240,330

Expenditures
857,631
349,304
6
79,121
32,776
66,705
71,357
‐
18,652
‐
83,066
1,558,619

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Note:

1) Certain county‐operated programs are staffed by individuals assigned to various departments (cost centers). Since this report is based on specific program elements, expenditures for these programs should be considered
reasonable estimates. Although this may give the appearance that a specific program is underfunded or overfunded, the total expenditures reported accurately reflects all MHSA related program costs.
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CSS‐ General System Development
Administrative Support
Approved MHSA Budget
Quality Assurance
Medication Monitoring
Clinical Quality Management
Clerical Support
Quality Assurance Total

Projected Expenditures

Expenditures

226,630
712,369
316,833
1,255,831

222,926
633,311
298,550
1,154,787

55,732
105,826
74,638
236,195

1

698,838
118,265
324,084
82,915
552,923
220,086
112,360

223,167
29,810
93,714
19,728
121,669
43,992
76,652
28,036
636,769

1

872,964

Administrative Support
Projected and Program Managers
Clinical Coordinators
Planner/ Evaluators
Family Service Coordinator
Administrative/ Fiscal Analysts
Clerical Support
Community Planning Process‐ Consultant Contracts
Misc. Costs
Administrative Support Total

2,109,471

737,170
119,241
404,571
78,911
531,467
149,288
108,055
112,145
2,240,847

Total

3,365,302

3,395,634

1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Note:

1) Certain county‐operated programs are staffed by individuals assigned to various departments (cost centers). Since this report is based on specific program elements, expenditures for these programs should be considered
reasonable estimates. Although this may give the appearance that a specific program is underfunded or overfunded, the total expenditures reported accurately reflects all MHSA related program costs.
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PEI Summary
Approved MHSA Budget

Projected Expenditures

Expenditures

Prevention‐ Outreach and Engagement
Reducing Risk of Development a Series Mental Illness
Increasing Recognition of Early Signs of Mental Illness
Underserved Communities
Prevention
Stigma and Discrimination Reduction
Access and Linkage to Treatment
Perinatal Depression Project
Suicide Prevention
Prevention Sub‐Total

1,035,575
1,580,477
2,351,312
295,211
230,107
201,632
439,541
6,133,854

1,099,418
1,095,821
2,220,151
303,417
224,751
152,327
414,868
5,510,753

56,635
138,894
289,510
55,897
20,527
‐
50,106
611,569

Early Intervention ‐ Project First Hope
Administrative Support
Total

2,377,280
157,314
8,668,448

2,057,263
755,913
8,323,929

486,323
184,118
1,282,011
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PEI‐ Outreach for Increasing Recognition of Early Signs of Mental Illness

Cc Interfaith
Triple P America Inc (COPE)
First 5 Cc Children & Fam
Latina Ctr, The
Asian Comm Mental Hlth
Jewish Family/Chld Svcs
Native American Hlth Ctr
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
70,000
238,703
79,568
108,565
137,917
169,403
231,419
1,035,575

Projected Expenditures
68,456
238,699
156,818
108,565
141,303
143,196
242,382
1,099,418

Expenditures
9,886
30,858
‐
15,891
‐
‐
‐
56,635

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.
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PEI‐ Improving Timely Access to MH Svcs for Underserved Populations

Rainbow Comm Ctr
La Clinica De La Raza
Lao Family Comm Devel
Center For Human Devel
Lifelong Medical Care
Child Abuse Preven Cncl
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
737,245
272,386
180,275
142,129
126,977
121,465
1,580,477

Projected Expenditures
219,408
272,386
214,485
141,100
126,977
121,466
1,095,821

Expenditures
50,684
‐
45,229
20,307
18,592
4,082
138,894

1
1
1
1

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.

Z:\BEHAVIORAL HEALTH\MHSA\17‐18\Projection\0917 MHSA v20917 MHSA v2
Reviewed by Faye Ny

Page 13
Prepared by Miu Tam

PEI ‐ Prevention

Martinez Usd ‐ Project New Leaf
People Who Care
Ryse Youth Center
Tides Center‐ BBK
Contra Costa Clubhouses
Families Experiencing Juvenile Justice System
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
180,353
216,604
488,368
210,580
565,883
689,524
2,351,312

Projected Expenditures
135,468
188,009
488,368
210,580
565,682
632,043
2,220,151

Expenditures
12,383
51,855
‐
15,496
103,856
105,919
289,510

1
1
1
1

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.
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PEI
Approved MHSA Budget
PEI‐ Stigma and Discrimination Reduction
CalMHSA PEI
Reducing Stigma

Projected Expenditures

Expenditures

78,000
217,211
295,211

78,000
225,417
303,417

‐
55,897
55,897

1

99,900
130,207
230,107

99,910
124,841
224,751

‐
20,527
20,527

1

301,636
137,905
439,541

310,685
104,183
414,868

50,106
‐
50,106

1

PEI‐ Perinatal Depression Project

201,632

152,327

‐

Administrative Support

157,314

755,913

184,118

2

Early Intervention
Project First Hope

2,377,280

2,057,263

486,323

2

Total

3,701,084

3,908,539

796,972

PEI‐Access and Linkage to Treatment
West Contra Costa YMCA JMP
Stand

PEI‐ Suicide Prevention
C C Crisis Center
Preventing Suicide

2

1

2

2

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.

2) Certain county‐operated programs are staffed by individuals assigned to various departments (cost centers). Since this report is based on specific program elements, expenditures for these programs should be considered
reasonable estimates. Although this may give the appearance that a specific program is underfunded or overfunded, the total expenditures reported accurately reflects all MHSA related program costs.
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INN

Supporting LGBTQ Youth‐ Rainbow Community Center
Reluctant to Rescue‐ Community Violence Solutions
CBSST
WELL Project
Coaching to Wellness
Partners in Aging
Overcoming Transportation Barriers
Administrative Support
Total

Approved MHSA Budget
500,000
100,000
200,000
‐
515,794
163,986
216,934
423,515
2,120,229

Projected Expenditures
516,100
9,244
73,302
302,804
489,272
163,150
174,667
403,290
2,131,829

Expenditures
64,861
354
‐
74,175
85,119
29,880
6,026
55,855
316,271

1
1
2
2
2
2
2
2

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.

2) Certain county‐operated programs are staffed by individuals assigned to various departments (cost centers). Since this report is based on specific program elements, expenditures for these programs should be considered
reasonable estimates. Although this may give the appearance that a specific program is underfunded or overfunded, the total expenditures reported accurately reflects all MHSA related program costs.
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WET
Approved MHSA Budget
Staff Training and Technical Assistant
CIBHS
Matthew R. Mock
Michaelsen
Nami Contra Costa
MH First Aid
Crisis Intervention Training
Kyer Group Corp
UCSF
Various Contractors‐ TBD

Projected Expenditures

Expenditures

1,960
2,000
8,000
61,850
20,000
15,000
10,000
3,600
107,590

1,960
2,000
8,000
10,695
20,000
15,000
10,000
3,600
99,590

1,960
2,000
7,000
‐
‐
‐
1,875
450
‐

30,000

30,000

‐

Residency Internship Program
Graduate Level Internships‐ Contract Agencies
Graduate Level Internships‐ County Operated

100,000
452,343

140,000
477,814

19,519
44,986

Financial Incentive Program

300,000

300,000

‐

3

Volunteer Support

600,000

600,000

‐

3

Workforce Staffing Support

827,321

579,646

41,983

2,539,664

2,298,305

119,774

MH Career Pathway

Total

1
1
1
1
1
3
2

1
2

2

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.

2) Certain county‐operated programs are staffed by individuals assigned to various departments (cost centers). Since this report is based on specific program elements, expenditures for these programs should be considered
reasonable estimates. Although this may give the appearance that a specific program is underfunded or overfunded, the total expenditures reported accurately reflects all MHSA related program costs.
3) This program is in planning phrase.
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Capital Facilities/ Information Technology
Approved MHSA Budget
Electronic Mental Health Records System
Total

643,835
643,835

Projected Expenditures
643,835
643,835

Expenditures
275
275

1

Note:
1) This is not reflective of the projected annual expenditures due to lags in receiving invoices from CBOs and Contracted Agencies.
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Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Program and Fiscal Review

I.

Date of On-site Review: March 24, April 11 and April 14, 2017
Date of Exit Meeting: August 30, 2017

II.

Review Team:

III.

Name of Program/Plan Element:
Community Options for Families and Youth
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 260
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523

IV.

Program Description.
Community Options for Families and Youth (“COFY”)
is a multi-disciplinary provider of mental health services. COFY’s mission is to
work with youth whose high-intensity behaviors place them at risk of
hospitalization or residential treatment. Mental health clinicians work
collaboratively with caregivers, educators, and social service professionals to
help exasperated families restore empathic relationships and maintain placement
for their children.

Stephanie Chenard, Warren Hayes, Helen Kearns,
Faye Ny, and Miu Tam

COFY provides a Full Service Partnership (FSP) Program funded by the Mental
Health Services Act. The program serves youth (12-18) and their families
through a Multisystemic Therapy (“MST”) model. MST is an intensive family and
community based treatment that addresses the multiple determinants of serious
anti-social behavior. The MST approach views individuals as being surrounded
by a network of interconnected systems that encompasses individual, family, and
extra familial (peers, school, community) factors. Intervention may be necessary
in any one or a combination of these systems, and using the strengths of each
system to facilitate positive change. The intervention strives to promote
behavioral change in the youth’s natural environment. Family sessions are
provided over a three to five month period. These sessions are based on
nationally recognized evidence based practices designed to decrease rates of
anti-social behavior, improve school performance and interpersonal skills, and
reduce out-of-home placements. The ultimate goal is to empower families to
build a healthier environment through the mobilization of existing child, family,
and community resources.
1

V.

Purpose of Review.
Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided,
b) more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this
program/plan element in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the
future.

VI.

Summary of Findings.
Topic
1. Deliver services according to the
values of the MHSA

Met
Standard
Met

Notes
Consumers and family
members indicated
program meets the values
of MHSA

2. Serve the agreed upon target
population.

Met

Program only serves
clients that meet criteria
for the County’s children’s
full service partnership
admission criteria.

3. Provide the services for which
funding was allocated.

Met

MHSA only funds services
consistent with Three Year
Plan

4. Meet the needs of the community
and/or population.

Met

Services are consistent
with Three Year Plan

5. Serve the number of individuals
that have been agreed upon.

Partially
Met

Program is in their target
number range, but should
work on being fully staffed,
and strengthen referral
relationships.

6. Achieve the outcomes that have
been agreed upon.

Partially
Met

Program meets most
outcomes

7. Quality Assurance

Partially
Met

Utilization review indicated
program meets most
quality assurance
standards
2

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality
of protected health information.

Met

9. Staffing sufficient for the program

Partially
Met

Current staffing provides
full services, but cannot
meet their target number
of consumers at current
levels.

10. Annual independent fiscal audit

Met

No material or significant
weaknesses were noted.

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to
deliver and sustain the services

Met

COFY has increasing net
assets each year.

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with
generally accepted accounting
principles

Met

Experienced staff
implement sound check
and balance system.

13. Documentation sufficient to
support invoices

Under
Review

The program is HIPAA
compliant

CCBHS Finance staff in
the process of reconciling
submitted annual cost
reports with independent
auditor’s report.

14. Documentation sufficient to
support allowable expenditures

Met

Clear audit trail
established between
allowable expenses and
billing.

15. Documentation sufficient to
support expenditures invoiced in
appropriate fiscal year

Met

No billings noted for
previous fiscal year
expenses.

16. Administrative costs sufficiently
justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program

Under
Review

Reported allocation
method across programs
appears appropriate.
COFY to submit written
methodology for
construction of indirect
rate and reconcile their
financial documents.

17. Insurance policies sufficient to
comply with contract

Met

Necessary insurance is in
place

18. Effective communication between
contract manager and contractor

Met

The County and program
meet regularly.

3

VII.

Review Results.

The review covered the following areas:

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).
Does the program/plan element collaborate with the community, provide an
integrated service experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be
culturally competent, and be client and family driven.
Method. Consumer, family member and service provider interviews and
consumer surveys.
Discussion. The results of 8 consumer surveys were received. The majority of
the survey responses were consistent with consumer interviews; namely, they
show a positive evaluation of the program; and that the program adheres to
MHSA values.
Questions
Please indicate how strongly you
agree or disagree with the
following statements regarding
persons who work with you:
1. Help me improve my health and
wellness.
2. Allow me to decide what my own
strengths and needs
3. Work with me to determine the
services that are most helpful
4. Provide services that are sensitive
to my cultural background.
5. Provide services that are in my
preferred language
6. Help me in getting needed health,
employment, education and other
benefits and services.
7. Are open to my opinions as to
how services should be provided
8. What does this program do well?

Responses: n=8
Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly I don’t
Agree
Disagree know
4
3
2
1
n/a
Average score: 3.72 (n=7)
Average score: 3.72 (n=7)
Average score: 3.75 (n=8)
Average score: 3.72 (n=7)
Average score: 4.00 (n=8)
Average score: 3.88 (n=8)
Average score: 3.88 (n=8)
•
•
•
•

Listen attentively, help me to think outside of
the box and allows me to communicate my
concerns and input.
Helps me and son form a better, healthier
relationship
Identifying problems with my child and
setting up rewards and consequences
Comes up with ways to pinpoint problems
and teaches families how to solve issues.
4

9. What does this program need to
improve upon?
10. What needed services and
supports are missing?
11. How important is this program in
helping you improve your health
and wellness, live a self-directed
life, and reach your full potential?

•

Scheduling

•

Support that includes the entire family.

12. Any additional comments?

•

Very
Important Somewhat
Important
Important
4
3
2
Average score: 3.75 (n=8)

•

Not
Important
1

I have seen improvement with the tools that
have been set up.
I really like this program and I’m really
looking forward to learn more about the
future and improving my household.

Consumer Interview
Due to the nature of the services being delivered almost exclusively in the field,
and because of the time commitments of the families and consumers, we were
only able to meet with one family member for a face-to-face interview. The family
member was a mother of a 17 year old son who was referred to the program
through the Juvenile Court system. The child referred for services was the
second oldest of four children, and the oldest of the children in the home. She
indicated that her family had previously received therapy, but did not achieve the
level of success that the MST program finally brought.
Overall, this mother was extremely appreciative of the services provided by
COFY. During the interview, some of the things specifically identified as
positives of the program were:
• The whole family approach engaged not only the son referred to the program,
but her and other children in the home as well.
• Getting her son engaged in other interests and social activities, which has
had a positive ripple effect out to the extended family as well.
These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values. However, the
mother also identified some areas of improvement that were largely focused on
addressing the needs of the Spanish-speaking community. She mentioned that it
was harder to connect with a Spanish-speaking clinician than an Englishspeaking one, and that the wait time was longer for Spanish-speaking families.
She also mentioned more outreach and information to the Spanish-speaking
community about the program would be extremely beneficial to the community.
The shortage of Spanish-speaking services is reflective of a larger issue in the
5

region. Spanish-speaking clinicians are considered hard-to-fill and retain
throughout the county. It is recommended that the program work with the County
and other agencies to explore options and strategies to attract bilingual clinicians
to help serve this need.
Staff Interview:
Six individuals attended the staff interview – all clinicians for the MST program,
and the program manager. Staff shared that the program receives referrals from
the County, often through the juvenile probation department and truancy court,
but also can come from other full-service partnership providers. The clinicians
provide care to the child and family in a top-down approach, according to the
MST model: the clinician working with the family works with the parents and the
child to look at the family dynamic as a whole. Staff reported spending most of
their time working with their clients through daily challenges, such as reducing
their isolation and re-integrating them into the community, providing support to
youth in court or in schools, and providing support to the family to build and
empower them. According to program staff, one of the principal strengths of the
program is the ability to match clients to culturally appropriate staff, and advocate
for the child and family with various institutions
During the interview, staff also shared hindrances they faced in providing
services to the youth, such as rocky hand-offs from County probation into their
program (i.e., missing information, or no direct contact with the referring service
providers), difficulty setting them up for aftercare, and referring them to other
County services. Staff also shared that they felt like the rigid structure of the
model limits their exposure to other methods and techniques, and did not give
them enough time/space to support each other with issues like compassion
fatigue and vicarious traumatization. However, staff did indicate that overall they
felt like they were meeting the needs of their clients, and appreciated their ability
to provide advocacy, the space to be creative in interventions, and capacity to
support in all areas of the clients’ lives.
Results. Interviews with program participants and service providers as well as
program participant survey results all support that COFY delivers programming in
accordance with the values of MHSA.
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2. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Community Services and
Supports, does the program serve children or youth with a serious emotional
disturbance. Does the program serve the agreed upon target population (such
as age group, underserved community).
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.
Discussion. The COFY Full Service Partnership program accepts referrals from
the County, often through the juvenile probation department and truancy court,
but also can come from other full-service partnership providers. The MHSA chart
review conducted by the MHSA Program and Fiscal Review team confirms the
agreed upon target population for full service partnerships.
Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services also performs a utilization review on all
programs which bill Medi-Cal, including COFY. On September 26, 2016 a Level 2
Centralized Utilization Chart Review was conducted. For all of the charts
reviewed, clients met medical necessity for specialty mental health services as
specified in the Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) Section 5600.3(a).
Results. The program serves the agreed upon population.
3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.
Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service
provider interviews.
Discussion. Monthly service summaries and 931 and 864 Reports from
CCBHS’s billing system show that the COFY Full Service Partnership program is
providing the number and type of services that have been agreed upon. Services
include MST program delivery, case management, individual and family
outpatient mental health services, crisis intervention, collateral services, and
flexible funds. Both program staff and participants indicated services are
available on a 24-7 basis via an after-hours crisis phone line.
Results. The program provides the services for which funding was allocated.
4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed. Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
program planning process. Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year
Program and Expenditure Plan.
Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
7

program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.
Discussion. The Full Service Partnership programs were included in the original
Community Services and Supports plan that was approved in May 2006 and
included in subsequent plan updates. The program has been authorized by the
Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current MHSA Three-Year
Program and Expenditure Plan. Interviews with service providers and program
participants support the notion that the program meets its goals and the needs of
the community it serves.
Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population for
which they are designated.
5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years.
Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.
Discussion. Upon initial award of the children’s FSP contract, COFY’s MST
target enrollment number was 100 clients. The program launched in the 13/14
FY, and during the ramp-up time COFY was below their target. However, at the
end of the 14/15 FY COFY was reporting serving 93 clients – much closer to their
target. Conversations with COFY’s County contract monitor revealed that they
have been under their target goal in the last 12 months, although this may be
primarily due to staffing turnover and the rigorous training and onboarding for
new clinicians.
Results. Annually the program has not yet served the number of individuals
specified in the service work plan, due to the program ramping-up. It is
recommended that COFY work with their County Contract Monitor, and to
examine staffing, capacity, and referral sources to achieve the target for which
they are budgeted.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of
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life, and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.
Discussion. Because COFY’s FSP program started late in FY 13/14, an annual
outcomes report was not produced for their first contract of providing FSP
services. The program has three overall program objectives as part of the
service work plan. The program has provided an annual report summarizing their
progress towards meeting their three program outcomes. However, there is not
a stated quantitative goal in the Service Work Plan with which to compare these
outcomes.
Results. Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives. However,
success indicators should be better quantified in the Service Work Plan. It is
recommended that COFY work with their contract monitor to establish baselines
to effectively measure their success indicators.
7. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision.
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.
Discussion. Contra Costa County did not receive any grievances associated
with COFY’s Full Service Partnership program. The program has an internal
grievance procedure in place and clients receive information on how to file
complaints as part of the agency’s Notice of Privacy Practices. The program
undergoes regular Level 1 and Level 2 utilization reviews conducted by the
County Mental Health utilization review teams to ensure that program services
and documentation meet regulatory standards. Level 1 and Level 2 utilization
review reports indicate that COFY is generally in compliance with documentation
and quality standards.
On September 26, 2016, a Level Two Centralized Utilization Chart Reviews and
a Focused Review was conducted by CCBHS. The results show that charts
generally met documentation standards, but there were a few compliance issues,
including missing or misfiled forms (Consumer Guide confirmation, Level 1
worksheet), documentation language (re: Spanish-speaking family vs. English
forms), other incomplete or incorrect forms that were identified in the review.
There were a few other findings related to disallowances for billable notes for
missing progress or treatment notes, incomplete notes, mis-categorized notes,
assessments and collateral (family therapy), and other related issues. Utilization
Review staff provided feedback regarding administrative issues, as well as
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standardized notes and weekly treatment plans. COFY submitted an appeal on
October 20, 2016 for one of the disallowances, which was granted by the County.
COFY’s MST Clinical Supervisor submitted a Plan of Correction to the County
dated November 10, 2016 indicating the new protocols for quality assurance and
training to address the issues in the Focused Review.
Results. The program has a quality assurance process in place.
8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol.
Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program/plan element’s implementation of a
protocol for safeguarding protected patient health information.
Discussion. COFY has written policies and provides staff training on HIPAA
requirements and safeguarding of patient information. Client charts are kept in
locked file cabinets, behind a locked door and comply with HIPAA standards.
Clients and program participants are informed about their privacy rights and rules
of confidentiality.
Results. The program complies with HIPAA requirements.
9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support.
Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.
Discussion. The nature of the team approach of MST evidence-based
treatment and program staff training allows COFY to provide the services
outlined in the Service Work Plan with current staffing. However, the current
staffing does not fully allow the agency to serve the targeted number of clients.
At the time of the site visit, COFY’s MST team was short two clinicians. Due to
the intensity, rigor and fidelity to the MST model, COFY is currently unable to
match the numbers in the Service Work Plan. Moreover, it has been indicated
that there are waiting lists, particularly for Spanish-speaking families to obtain
services.
Results. Staffing is in place to provide the full range of services, but not serve
the number of clients outlined in the Service Work Plan. Moreover, the turnover
of program staff is a potential cause for concern as it may affect the program’s
ability to effectively serve clients. The MST model takes time to get a clinician
trained to take on their own caseload. Additionally, it takes time for service
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providers to learn about the various resources available through Contra Costa
Behavioral Health’s System of Care. Knowledge of the System of Care is critical
when serving clients with complex behavioral health service needs who may
need to be referred to other providers for additional care. The agency may want
to examine how it recruits and retains staff and consider offering additional
incentives to ensure qualified individuals are retained and able to offer the full
spectrum of services.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.
Discussion. COFY is a California public benefit corporation organized in 2007
for the purpose of providing services to families and youth with emotional
disturbances in order to enable these youth to maintain family and community
relationships. Patient services revenue from contracts with CCBHS and over 20
educational institutions provides 97% of the revenue. With approximately 34
employees and a total operating budget of $2.8 million the available fiscal audits
indicate COFY not to be at risk for adverse fiscal consequences due to their
fiscal and accounting systems.
Results. Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2013-14, 14-15 and 15-16
were provided and reviewed. No material or significant findings were noted.
11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program or
plan element.
Method. Review audited financial statements and Board of Directors meeting
minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The organization appears to be operating within the budget
constraints provided by their authorized contract amount, and thus appears to be
able to sustain their stated costs of delivering FSP services for the entirety of this
fiscal year. According to COFY’s leadership their increasing net assets at the
end of each fiscal year are due to their fee based educational contracts that net
them a profit. Their contracts with CCBHS are reported to be a full cost recovery
of their expenses.
Results. Fiscal resources are currently sufficient to deliver and sustain services.
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12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager.
Discussion. The Business Manager is well qualified, and has been with COFY
for many years. Staff described established protocols that are in place to enable
a check and balance system to assure compliance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The organization uses Clinitrak and QuickBooks software
for entry and aggregation to enable accurate summaries for billing and payment.
Supporting documentation is kept in hard copies for storage and retrieval.
Results. Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.
Discussion. A randomly selected invoice for each of the last three years was
matched with supporting documentation provided by the agency. A clear and
accurate connection was established between documented hours/types of
mental health services and submitted invoices. COFY’s FSP program is a
specialty mental health service contract with CCBHS that is based upon
established rates and billed monthly according to the documented level of service
provided. At the end of the fiscal year a reconciliation process takes place that
determines final payment for the year. This amount is the total of the mental
health services established by rates, or the actual cost of delivering the services,
whichever is lower. Because this is a rate based contract the reviewers
additionally compared yearly submitted cost reports to the financial statements
constructed in the independent auditor’s reports. The two reports did not appear
to match. The Business Manager explained that these two methods of depicting
actual organizational costs were done independent of each other by separate
individuals at different points in time.
Results. Supporting documentation supports invoices, but does not match the
independent auditor’s annual financial statement. Reviewer staff will research
and attempt to better understand the phenomena.
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14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the County.
Discussion. Line item personnel and operating costs were reviewed for
appropriateness. All line items submitted were consistent with line items that are
appropriate to support the service delivery. However, the amounts in the
professional fees, travel and training costs considerably exceeded normal
amounts seen in similar contracts. COFY staff explained that these high costs
were due to MST being a SAMHSA approved evidence based practice with one
professional organization having proprietary ownership of the training and
certification of organizations and staff, as well as active participation in the
ongoing fidelity and evaluation of the model. Thus these costs were necessary in
order for COFY to continue to contract with CCBHS for delivery of MST.
Results. Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time and operating
costs appear to be justified and documented. It is suggested that CCBHS
leadership review the cost and need for ensuring organizational fidelity to the
MST model.
15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).
Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program or plan element.
Discussion. Total contract billing was within contract limits, with no billing by
this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year. However,
closing entries for the last three years were reviewed and indicate that
significantly more money was billed to the MHSA cost center than was approved
by the Board of Supervisors. This will be corrected by CCBHS and County
Finance staff.
Results. COFY appears to be implementing an appropriate year end closing
system. CCBHS will implement administrative procedures with Finance staff to
ensure contract costs charged to the MHSA cost center do not exceed County
Board of Supervisor authorization.
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16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The COFY FY 2015-16 Cost Report submitted to CCBHS was
utilized to determine the percentage of indirect costs reported by the agency.
Personnel and operating costs were reported at a total of $2,239,857, with
$598,573 reported as indirect costs. This reflects an indirect rate of 26.7%,
which is significantly higher than what would be expected of an organization of
this nature and size. The indirect costs reflected on the cost report are at
variance with the management and general costs reflected in the independent
auditor’s report, which is at 14.9%. The Business Manager explained that the
certified public accountant provided guidance as to construction of the indirect
rate and a formula for equitably allocating indirect costs for each of their four
programs. The allocation methodology appears appropriate. However the
indirect rates on the two documents do not match.
Results. It is recommended that COFY provide a written methodology that
justifies their indirect rate, how it is allocated across programs, and that this
expense category amount in their cost report either match their independent
auditor’s report, or the variance be sufficiently explained and justified.
17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.
Method. Review insurance policies.
Discussion. The program provided certificate of commercial general liability
insurance, automobile liability, umbrella liability, professional liability and
directors and officers liability policies that were in effect at the time of the site
visit.
Results. The program complies with the contract insurance requirements.
18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
Discussion. To date contract management duties have been centralized within
CCBHS’s children’s system. Moreover, the contract manager and Children’s
Chief meet with the program for regular monthly meetings. However, many of the
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referrals have come from other County staff who may not have full knowledge of
activities and invoicing related to MHSA as well as pertaining to program issues.
Results. The program regularly meets with its County contract manager.
However, it is recommended that the County contract monitor and the program
take advantage of their regular meetings to identify areas of opportunity to
strengthen communications with other departments to maximize the efficacy of
referrals.

VIII.

Summary of Results.
COFY is committed to serving the needs of youth whose high-intensity behaviors
place them at risk of hospitalization or residential treatment. Their intensive
family and community-based treatment and has been successful in supporting
these youth and their families in connecting more fully to their community. The
COFY Full Service Partnership adheres to the values of MHSA. COFY appears
to be a financially sound organization that follows generally accepted accounting
principles, and maintains documentation that supports agreed upon service
expenditures.

IX.

Findings for Further Attention.
•

COFY should continue to work with their County contract manager to
examine staffing, capacity, and referral sources to hit the target they were
budgeted for.

•

COFY should work with their contract manager to establish baselines to
effectively measure their success indicators.

•

COFY should examine how it recruits and retains staff and consider
offering additional incentives to ensure qualified individuals are retained
and that the full spectrum of service is available to clients.

•

It is recommended that COFY, in concert with CCBHS, reconcile the
differing dollar amounts reflected in the annual Cost Report versus the
independent auditor’s report. This would include submission and approval
of an indirect rate that reflects costs commensurate with the benefit
received by the program.
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•

The County contract monitor should take advantage of their regular
meetings with COFY to identify areas of opportunity to strengthen
communications with other departments to maximize the efficacy of
referrals.

X.

Next Review Date. March 2020

XI.

Appendices.

Appendix A – Program Description/Service Work Plan
Appendix B – Service Provider Budget
Appendix C – Yearly External Fiscal Audit
Appendix D – Organization Chart

XII.

Working Documents that Support Findings.

Consumer Listing
Consumer, Family Member Surveys
Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
County Utilization Review Report
Progress Reports, Outcomes
Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation (Contractor)
Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan (Contractor)
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes (Contractor)
Insurance Policies (Contractor)
MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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APPENDIX A
Program Description/Service Work Plan

Community Options for Families and Youth, Inc.
Point of Contact: David Bergesen
Contact Information: 3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 260, Pleasant Hill CA 94523,
(925) 943-1794, d.bergesen@cofy.org
1. General Description of the Organization
Community Options for Families and Youth (COFY) is a multi-disciplinary provider of
mental health services. COFY’s mission is to work with youth whose high-intensity
behaviors place them at risk of hospitalization or residential treatment. Their mental
health clinicians work collaboratively with caregivers, educators, and social service
professionals to help exasperated families restore empathic relationships and
maintain placement for their children.
2. Program: Multisystemic Therapy (MST) – Full Service Partnership (FSP) - CSS
Multisystemic Therapy (“MST”) in an intensive family and community based
treatment that addresses the multiple determinants of serious anti-social behavior.
The MST approach views individuals as being surrounded by a network of
interconnected systems that encompasses individual, family, and extra familial
(peers, school, community) factors. Intervention may be necessary in any one or a
combination of these systems, and using the strengths of each system to facilitate
positive change. The intervention strives to promote behavioral change in the
youth’s natural environment. Family sessions are provided over a three to five month
period. These sessions are based on nationally recognized evidence based
practices designed to decrease rates of anti-social behavior, improve school
performance and interpersonal skills, and reduce out-of-home placements. The
ultimate goal is to empower families to build a healthier environment through the
mobilization of existing child, family, and community resources.
a. Scope of Services: Services include but are not limited to outreach and
engagement, case management, outpatient mental health services, crisis
intervention, collateral services, flexible funds. COFY MST staff must be
available to consumer on a 24/7 basis.
b. Target Population: Children 12 to 17 who have a serious emotional disturbance
or serious mental illness, and have been identified as a juvenile offender or are at
risk of involvement with Probation due to delinquent behavior. Services are
county-wide.

c. Payment Limit: for FY 2015-2016 MHSA portion: $650,000
d. Number served: In FY15/16 COFY FSP served 91 individuals.
e. Outcomes: For clients served in 2015: Percent of clients with no new arrests:
71.43%, living in the home: 80.95%, and working or in school: 80.95%

Table 2. Pre- and post-enrollment utilization rates for 91 Community Options for Families and Youth,
Inc. participants enrolled in the FSP program during FY 15-16
No. preenrollment

No. postenrollment

Rate preenrollment

Rate postenrollment

%change

PES episodes

15

9

0.017

0.011

-35.2

Inpatient episodes

3

1

0.002

0.001

-50

Inpatient days

14

7

0.012

0.012

0

JACS

20

19

0.029

0.028

-3.44

APPENDIX B
Service Provider Budget

APPENDIX C
Yearly External Fiscal Audit

APPENDIX D
Organization Chart

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Program and Fiscal Review

I.

Date of On-site Review: June 7, 2017
Date of Exit Meeting: September 6, 2017

II.

Review Team: Stephanie Chenard, Warren Hayes, Liza Molina-Huntley

III.

Name of Program:

IV.

Program Description. C.O.P.E.’s mission is to prevent child abuse, by
providing comprehensive services in order to strengthen family relationships and
bonds, empower parents, encourage healthy relationships, and cultivate
nurturing family units to encourage an optimal environment for the healthy growth
and development of parents and children through parent education.

C.O.P.E. Family Support Center
2280 Diamond Blvd., Suite 460
Concord, CA 94520

In partnership with First 5 Contra Costa Children, Family Commission and
County Behavioral Health, C.O.P.E. is funded to deliver Positive Parenting
Program (“Triple P”) classes to parent of children age 0 – 17. The C.O.P.E
Family Support Center will provide approximately 21 services using the
evidence-based Triple P — Positive Parenting Program Level 2 Seminar, Level 3
Primary Care, Level 4 Group, Level 5 Pathways, Level 5 Enhanced, Level 5
Transitions, and Level 5 Lifestyles Multi-Family Support Groups.
The program utilizes a self-regulatory model that focuses on strengthening the
positive attachment between parents and children by helping parents to develop
effective skills to manage common child behavioral issues. C.O.P.E.’s targeted
population includes caregivers residing in underserved communities throughout
Contra Costa County.
All classes are available in Arabic, Farsi, Portuguese, Spanish and/or English
languages and level 4 materials are also available in Spanish and Arabic. In
regard to the curriculum on Triple P Parenting, C.O.P.E. provides management
briefings, orientation and community awareness meetings to partner agencies.
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They support and organize trainings, including pre-accreditation trainings, fidelity
oversight and clinical and peer support in an effort to build and maintain a pool of
Triple P practitioners
V.

Purpose of Review. Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided, b)
more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this
program in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the future.

VI.

Summary of Findings.
Topic
1. Deliver services according to the
values of the MHSA

Met
Standard
Met

Notes
Consumers and family
members indicate the
program meets the values
of MHSA

2. Serve the agreed upon target
population.

Met

Program improves timely
access to an underserved
population.

3. Provide the services for which
funding was allocated.

Met

Funds services consistent
with the agreed upon
Service Work Plan.

4. Meet the needs of the community
and/or population.

Met

Services are consistent
with the Three Year Plan

5. Serve the number of individuals
that have been agreed upon.

Met

Target service numbers
are reached.

6. Achieve the outcomes that have
been agreed upon.

Met

Program meets its
outcomes

7. Quality Assurance

Met

No reported grievances.

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality
of protected health information.

Met

HIPAA compliant privacy
policies in place.
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9. Staffing sufficient for the program

Met

Staffing level supports
targeted service numbers.

10. Annual independent fiscal audit

Met

No material or significant
weaknesses were noted.

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to
deliver and sustain the services

Met

CCBHS is C.O.P.E.’s
major source of funding.
Suggest pursuing
additional funding
streams, such as voluntary
contributions, for program
growth and sustainability.

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with
generally accepted accounting
principles

Met

Experienced staff
implement sound check
and balance system.

13. Documentation sufficient to
support invoices

Met

Utilizes appropriate
supporting documentation
protocol.

14. Documentation sufficient to
support allowable expenditures

Met

Recommend that the
budget reflect all funding
sources for PEI program.

15. Documentation sufficient to
support expenditures invoiced in
appropriate fiscal year

Met

No billings noted for
previous fiscal year
expenses.

16. Administrative costs sufficiently
justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program

Met

Recommend all costs
currently charged as
indirect be reflected in the
future in personnel and
operating cost categories.

17. Insurance policies sufficient to
comply with contract

Met

Necessary insurance is in
place

18. Effective communication between
contract manager and contractor

Met

The County and program
meet regularly.
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VII.

Review Results.

The review covered the following areas:

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).
Does the program collaborate with the community, provide an integrated service
experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be culturally competent,
and be client and family driven.
Method. Consumer, family member and service provider interviews and
consumer surveys.
Discussion.
Survey Results
We received 7 responses to the survey. The majority of the survey responses
were consistent with consumer interviews; namely, they show a positive
evaluation of the program; and that the program adheres to MHSA values.
Questions
Please indicate how strongly you
agree or disagree with the
following statements regarding
persons who work with you:
1. Help me improve my health and
wellness.
2. Allow me to decide what my own
strengths and needs
3. Work with me to determine the
services that are most helpful
4. Provide services that are sensitive
to my cultural background.
5. Provide services that are in my
preferred language
6. Help me in getting needed health,
employment, education and other
benefits and services.
7. Are open to my opinions as to
how services should be provided

Responses: n=7
Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly I don’t
Agree
Disagree know
4
3
2
1
n/a
Average score: 3.57 (n=7)
Average score: 4.00 (n=6)
Average score: 3.71 (n=7)
Average score: 3.20 (n=5)
Average score: 3.86 (n=7)
Average score: 3.40 (n=5)
Average score: 3.86 (n=7)
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8. What does this program do well?

•
•
•

•

9. What does this program need to
improve upon?

•
•
•

10. What needed services and
supports are missing?

•
•

Provide help necessary for my
communication in co-parenting
Catered to my specific needs (each
individuals specific needs)
I think it does everything well, It opened my
mind a little more about what co-parenting is
about. It helps me as a single parent who
doesn't have the other partner around.
Bringing together parents for mutual support
and also providing support with various
specific issues. Practitioners listen and are
responsive with relevant advice in difficult
situations.
We need books.
Maybe extending it a little bit longer. I took a
12-week class once per week and would
have loved more classes.
Being a bit more organized through
organization the class continued to improve
Give more support for parents going through
transition (divorce, etc). So that they can coparent better.
More focus on mental health (for this specific
course). Addressing these issues sooner
and possibly having another speaker from
another organization to address insured and
medical individuals (maybe someone from
John Muir)

11. How important is this program in
helping you improve your health
and wellness, live a self-directed
life, and reach your full potential?

Very
Important Somewhat
Important
Important
4
3
2
Average score: 3.29 (n=7)

12. Any additional comments?

•

•

Not
Important
1

This program has helped me gain
knowledge in a variety of social services
areas. C.O.P.E. goes above and beyond for
their clients.
The teacher was great. I felt very
comfortable in the class. We felt like a little
family. I look forward to talking more classes
in the future.
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•

I liked that I got a strong sense of dedication
on the part of everyone at C.O.P.E. involved
in the class. Helpful to share parent contact
information for those parents who are
interested in extra mutual support outside
the program.

Consumer Interview
The consumer interview was attended by seven people all of whom attend the
parenting classes offered. The length of times that each family had been involved
with the program varied from six weeks to nine months. Consumers reported
their initial referrals to the C.O.P.E. classes and/or counseling programs were
through recommendations from Children and Family Services, School
Attendance Review Board (SARB), and individual therapists. Overall, the
consumers were very appreciative of the services provided by C.O.P.E. They all
felt generally that there was cultural grounding for them in their treatment, and
that their input was solicited and valued as part of the treatment plan. During the
interview, some of the other things specifically identified as positives of the
program were:
• Peer component to groups was extremely valuable – felt secure and
supportive, and helped relieve feelings of isolation.
• Facilitators demonstrated empathy – felt like they were also “peers”.
• Gender mix was good – nice to have half men and women (men in the group
advised that having father support was very helpful).
• Bringing in a juvenile probation officer also gave parents a safe setting to
explore risky issues.
• Dinner time sessions, and sharing a meal/food with the group made it feel
warmer and more welcoming.
• Co-parenting classes for parents who were not living together were beneficial.
These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values. However, the
families also identified some areas of improvement. Several consumers
mentioned they would like to have had more of a focus on mental health
challenges for themselves and children. Consumers also expressed the desire
for more types of groups. One family also mentioned they wished they had found
out earlier about the parenting classes, prior to their involvement with social
services; they wished that their faith community, or other community supports –
particularly in the Latino community – had more information about the program.
Lastly, several consumers mentioned that transportation could be a barrier to
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regularly attending groups or individual sessions. While C.O.P.E. delivers
classes in the east part of the county, the availability of those often didn’t fit the
parent’s schedule.
Staff Interviews
In addition to its core management team, C.O.P.E. has a few full-time
administrative and support staff to help with operations. The program line staff
comes primarily from a pool of social workers and other mental health
professionals, who have been trained and certified to lead the Triple P classes.
Most of these professionals have other employment, which presented a
challenge to get most of them together for a face-to-face meeting. However, we
were able to meet with one of the trainers, who took time from her normal fulltime employment to meet with the review team and talk about her experience
with C.O.P.E. and the Triple P program.
The trainer we spoke with is a full-time social worker, and her experience in this
field and working with families attracted her to C.O.P.E.’s program. She has
worked with C.O.P.E. as a trainer, delivering classes for several years. She
noted that particularly in the past two years, her class sizes have been steadily
increasing, and that demand seems to be growing beyond C.O.P.E.’s capacity to
keep up. She also revealed that some of the positives about the program are
being able to work with parents who may have been referred as part of a
mandated process, are reluctant and perhaps a bit resistant, but the nature of the
peer component and the materials itself allowed them to quickly and fully
engage. She feels that there is strong support and assistance provided by
C.O.P.E. to the trainers and ensuring fidelity to the Triple-P model.
C.O.P.E. strives to be a learning community where individuals learn how to
manage their challenges, and serve as a provider of direct prevention services.
Results. C.O.P.E. delivers services according to the values of the MHSA. The
program delivers programming at locations that are generally accessible to
participants; staff is culturally and linguistically competent and maintains close
ties to the community it serves.

2. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Prevention and Early
Intervention, does the program serve individuals and families who are at risk for
developing a serious mental illness or serious emotional disturbance. Does the
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program serve the agreed upon target population (such as age group,
underserved community).
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.
Discussion. C.O.P.E.’s target population is Contra Costa County parents of
children and youth with identified special needs. Often these individuals and
families are subject to many high risk factors for developing mental health
problems. The program also serves Hispanic families, many of whom are
monolingual.
Results. The program serves the agreed upon target population.
3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.
Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service
provider interviews.
Discussion. Monthly service summaries as well as semi-annual reports show
that the program is consistently engaged in outreach activities, is providing
support groups and individual navigation supports.
Results. The program provides the services for which funding was allocated.
4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed. Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
program planning process. Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year
Program and Expenditure Plan.
Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.
Discussion. Programming for Building Connection in Underserved Cultural
Communities was included in the original PEI plan that was approved in May
2009 and included in subsequent plan updates. The program has been
authorized by the Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current MHSA
Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan as well as the proposed PEI
regulations on prevention programs. Programs and strategies pursue timely
access and linkage to mental health services for individuals and families from
underserved populations. Interviews with service providers and program
participants support the notion that the program meets its goals and the needs of
the community it serves.
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Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population for
which it is designated.
5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years.
Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.
Discussion. According to the Service Work Plan in the contract between the
program and the County, the program’s target service numbers is to serve 204
parents through Triple P seminars and group classes. Over the past three years,
the program has consistently exceeded their target numbers.
Results. The program serves the number of people that have been agreed
upon, and consistently exceeds the target enrollment number.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of
life, and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.
Discussion. C.O.P.E. has a few well-defined primary program objectives as part
of the service work plan including: improving parenting skills, increasing sense of
competence in parenting abilities, improving self-awareness of parenting issues,
reducing parental stress, improving mental health outcomes for both children and
parents. The program provides timely semi-annual reports summarizing their
progress towards meeting their program outcomes.
Results. Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives.
7. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision.
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.
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Discussion. Contra Costa County did not receive any grievances toward the
program. The program has an internal grievance policy in place. Since the
program does not provide billable services, it not subject to utilization review.
Results. The program has a quality assurance process in place.
8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol.
Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program’s implementation of a protocol for
safeguarding protected patient health information.
Discussion. C.O.P.E. has written policies and provides staff training on HIPAA
requirements and safeguarding of patient information. Client charts are kept in
locked file cabinets, behind a locked door and comply with HIPAA standards.
Clients and program participants are informed about their privacy rights and rules
of confidentiality.
Results. The program complies with HIPAA requirements.
9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support.
Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.
Discussion. C.O.P.E.’s mental health team has a sufficient number and type of
staff to support their operations. The experience level of the trainers tends
towards highly experienced mental health and social work professionals.
C.O.P.E. provides training to certify trainers in the Triple-P model and continues
to provide ongoing support and training. However, as noted in #1, the demand
for the program seems to be outpacing C.O.P.E.’s capacity. It is recommended
that C.O.P.E. build relationships with other organizations in the community to
explore potential partnerships to help keep up with increased demand.
Results. Sufficient staffing is in place to serve the number of clients outlined in
the most recent Service Work Plan.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.
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Discussion. C.O.P.E. is a non-profit corporation established in 2010 to prevent
child abuse and encourage healthy growth and development of parents and
children through the educational Positive Parenting Program. The organization
has a total operating budget of approximately $500,000, and receives the
majority of its funding through financial agreements with CCBHS and First Five of
California. Independent auditor reports from the last three years indicate that
C.O.P.E. is not at risk for adverse fiscal consequences due to their fiscal and
accounting systems.
Results. Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2013-14, 14-15 and 15-16
were provided and reviewed. No material or significant findings were noted.
11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program.
Method. Review audited financial statements and Board of Directors meeting
minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The organization appears to be operating within the budget
constraints provided by their authorized contract amount, and thus appears to be
able to sustain their stated costs of delivering PEI services for the entirety of the
fiscal year. The site visit discussion surfaced that current revenue streams have
constrained C.O.P.E.’s capacity to expand and respond to the number of parents
wanting to participate in the Triple P classes. Since MHSA PEI funding is not
expected to increase in the foreseeable future, C.O.P.E. was encouraged to
explore strategies by which participating parents could contribute to the costs of
the program, should they desire to do so.
Results. Fiscal resources are currently sufficient to deliver and sustain current
level of services. It is suggested that C.O.P.E. pursuing additional funding
streams.
12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager.
Discussion. The Finance Manager is experienced with supporting non-profit
organizations of this size, appears well qualified, and described established
protocols that are in place to enable a check and balance system to assure
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. The organization
uses an established software program for personnel and administrative activities.
Results. Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
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13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.
Discussion. A randomly selected invoice for each of the last three years was
matched with supporting documentation provided by the agency. A clear and
accurate connection was established between expenses incurred and submitted
invoices. It appears that there is not duplicate billing to the major two funding
sources of CCBHS and First Five, and that staff time and expenses dedicated to
PEI activities are at least equal to or greater than the amount billed to CCBHS.
Results. Uses established software program with appropriate supporting
documentation protocol.
14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the county.
Discussion. Line item personnel and operating costs were matched against the
approved CCBHS budget line items and reviewed for appropriateness.
Supporting documentation only became clear when the First Five funding source
was added. Should the CCBHS contract be audited this could make it difficult to
accurately match funding sources to total PEI program costs and justify
respective billings to the funding sources. It does appear that documentation
could support allowable expenditures, and that expenses submitted were
consistent with line items that are appropriate to support the service delivery.
Results. Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time and operating
costs appear to be justified and documented. It is recommended that the total
budget for fielding the Triple P program be depicted, and that all funding sources
for this effort be specified, to include that portion in each line item that is funded
by the CCBHS contract.
15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).
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Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. Total contract billing was within contract limits, with no billing by
this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year.
Results. C.O.P.E. appears to be implementing an appropriate year end closing
system.
16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The management and general costs reflected in the independent
auditor’s report support an indirect cost amount that is in the CCBHS contract
budget. However, the contract listed budget rate of 12.67% is misleading, in that
while it is a correct calculation for the CCBHS contract revenue of $231,750, the
calculation does not include the First Five revenue that supports a total Triple P
program cost of over $400,000. Including First Five revenue would reduce the
indirect rate to approximately 5%. It is recommended that in future budget
calculations C.O.P.E. not budget an indirect rate, and include current indirect
costs in the personnel and operating cost categories. This would eliminate the
need to justify an indirect rate methodology. A review of the type of costs
currently attributable to indirect costs could easily be added to operating cost line
items.
Results. Indirect costs charged appear reasonable. Recommend all costs
currently charged as indirect be reflected in the future in personnel and operating
cost categories.
17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.
Method. Review insurance policies.
Discussion. The program provided certificate of commercial general liability
insurance, automobile liability, umbrella liability, professional liability and
directors and officers liability policies that were in effect at the time of the site
visit.
Results. The program complies with contract insurance requirements.
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18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
Discussion. Program staff and county communicate regularly and in recent
months increasingly to discuss outcomes and reporting requirements.
Results. The program has good communication with the contract manager.

VIII.

Summary of Results.
C.O.P.E. is committed to delivering culturally and linguistically appropriate mental
health services to Contra Costa County parents of children and youth with
identified special needs. Their prevention and early intervention services seek to
provide families with grounded skills and supports to manage their challenges.
The C.O.P.E. programs adhere to the values of MHSA and serving their target
population. The program is meeting and often exceeding the outcomes detailed
in their contract. C.O.P.E. appears to be a financially sound organization that
follows generally accepted accounting principles, and maintains documentation
that supports agreed upon service expenditures.

IX.

X.

Findings for Further Attention.
•

It is recommended that C.O.P.E. build relationships with other
organizations in the community to explore potential partnerships to help
keep up with increased demand.

•

It is recommended that 1) the total budget for fielding the Triple P program
be depicted, and that all funding sources for this effort be specified such
as First Five, and include that portion in each line item that is funded by
the CCBHS contract; and 2) all costs currently charged as indirect be
reflected in the future in the personnel and operating cost categories.

Next Review Date. June 2020
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XI.

Appendices.

Appendix A – Program Description
Appendix B – Service Provider Budget
Appendix C – Yearly External Fiscal Audit
Appendix D – Organization Chart

XII.

Working Documents that Support Findings.

Consumer Listing
Consumer, Family Member Surveys
Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
Progress Reports, Outcomes
Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation
Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes
Insurance Policies
MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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APPENDIX A
Program Description/Service Work Plan

Counseling Options Parent Education (C.O.P.E.)
Point of Contact: Cathy Botello
Contact Information: 2280 Diamond Blvd #460, Concord, Ca 94520. (925) 689-5811
cathy.botello@copefamilysupport.org
1. General Description of the Organization
C.O.P.E.’s mission is to prevent child abuse, by providing comprehensive services in
order to strengthen family relationships and bonds, empower parents, encourage
healthy relationships, and cultivate nurturing family units to encourage an optimal
environment for the healthy growth and development of parents and children through
parent education.
2. Programs: Triple P Positive Parenting Education and Support (PEI)
a. Scope of Services:
In partnership with First 5 Contra Costa Children, Family Commission and
County Behavioral Health, C.O.P.E. is funded to deliver Positive Parenting
Program classes to parent of children age 0 – 17. The C.O.P.E Family Support
Center (Contractor) will provide approximately 21 services using the evidencebased Triple P — Positive Parenting Program Level 2 Seminar, Level 3 Primary
Care, Level 4 Group, Level 5 Pathways, Level 5 Enhanced, Level 5 Transitions,
Level 5 Lifestyles Multi-Family Support Groups, at no cost to parents of children
two years to seventeen years of age.
The program utilizes a self-regulatory model that focuses on strengthening the
positive attachment between parents and children by helping parents to develop
effective skills to manage common child behavioral issues. Our targeted
population includes caregivers residing in underserved communities throughout
Contra Costa County.
All classes are available in Spanish and/or English and level 4 is available in
Arabic and Farsi. In regards to the curriculum on Triple P Parenting, C.O.P.E.
provides management briefings, orientation and community awareness meetings
to partner agencies. They support and organize trainings, including preaccreditation trainings, fidelity oversight and clinical and peer support in an effort
to build and maintain a pool of Triple P practitioners
b. Target Population: Contra Costa County parents of children and youth with
identified special needs.
c. Payment Limit: $231,750(6 – 17), through First Five: $77,250 (0 – 5).

d. Number served: For FY 15/16: 230 (6 – 17) and 241 (0 – 5).
e. Outcomes:
• Completed 28 parent education classes of for various levels of parenting
problems.
• Pre and Post Test show improvements in measures of parenting style
(laxness, over-reactivity, and hostility), decrease of depression/anxiety
measures, and decrease in frequency of child problem behavior,
improvement in child adjustment behavior and caregivers level of stress about
these behaviors.

Service Work Plan

Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center

Number: #24-725-1

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017

I.

Scope of Services

The C.O.P.E Family Support Center (Contractor) will provide approximately 21 services using the evidencebased Triple P — Positive Parenting Program Level 2 Seminar, Level 3 Primary Care, Level 4 Group, Level
5 Pathways, Level 5 Enhanced, Level 5 Transitions, Level 5 Lifestyles Multi-Family Support Groups, at no
cost to parents of children six years to seventeen years of age.
The C.O.P.E Family Support Center (Contractor) will provide approximately 17 services using the evidencebased Triple P — Positive Parenting Program Level 2 Seminar, Level 3 Primary Care, Level 4 Group, Level
5 Pathways, Level 5 Enhanced, Level 5 Transitions, Level 5 Lifestyles Multi-Family Support Groups, at no
cost to parents of children two years to five years of age through a contract with First 5 Contra Costa
Children and Families Commission in partnership with Mental Health Services Act in partnership with Contra
Costa Mental Health.
The program utilizes a self-regulatory model that focuses on strengthening the positive attachment between
parents and children by helping parents to develop effective skills to manage common child behavioral
issues. Our targeted population includes caregivers residing in underserved communities throughout Contra
Costa County.
A. Provide fidelity, technical assistance and a co-facilitation staff for up to twenty-one (21) Triple P-Positive
Parenting intervention with qualifying partner community agencies and certified accredited Triple P
practitioners.
B. Contractor will provide a management briefing/orientations/outreach to partnering agencies. The
presentations are designed to outline the comprehensive overview of the Triple P multi-level system (e.g.
levels of intervention, training programs, service delivery options) as required by MI-ISA and First 5,
Contra Costa. The management briefing provides an opportunity to discuss the implementation of the
program and ways to effectively support the partnering agency’s staff while implementing the Triple P
program.
C. Coordinate Train the Trainers training in level most needed in Contra Costa County for up to twenty (20)
Practitioners in Contra Costa County. Contractor will provide competency-based pre-accreditation
training hours in preparation for the accreditation process. Pre-accreditation trainings are designed to
provide an opportunity for individualized feedback on skill development, opportunities to practice
specific competencies and clarifying program content relevant to quiz questions.
D. Contractor will provide monthly peer support meetings designed to provide supervision to problem solve
issues related to the delivery of Triple P to parents and support a continuing education environment that
will facilitate the transfer of learning from the training course to everyday practice.
E. Contractor will provide a Triple P Learning Community designed to promote capacity to offer evidence
based Triple P programs by highly trained and qualified practitioners. Accredited Practitioners will be

Initials: _____/ _____

County / Contractor

Service Work Plan

Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center

Number: #24-725-1

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017

entitled to opportunities for additional trainings and updates in the Triple P System. Practitioners will be
able to apply their learning skills as part of the Triple P Learning Community through their involvement
in the Learning Community.
F. Contractor will provide pre and post assessment information and input data to provide analysis and
outcomes to practitioners for use in the coaching component and future referrals to other levels of Triple
P. Contactor will also document demographics, attendance, and delivery of incentives, etc and provide a
report to funder.
G. Contractor will oversee fidelity through use of checklists and continued learning opportunities and
trainings for practitioners.
H. Contractor will attend monthly SARB meeting designed to promote Triple P Positive Parenting class
attendance for mandated parents who have children with serious issues at school.
I.

Contractor will attend School Age and Teen Parent Truancy Courts to promote Triple P System to the
courts and outreach to at risk parenting in the county.

J. Contractor will provide outreach that is engaging, educating to potential responders.
K. Contractor will outreach to the following but are not limited to, families, employers, primary health care,
social services, faith based organizations and others in a position to identify early signs of MI, and
provide support and/or refer for treatment.
L. Contractor will outreach to individuals with signs and symptoms of mental illness, so that they can
recognize and respond to their own symptoms.
M. Contractor will design and implement services to help create access and linkage to mental health
treatment

N. Contractor will design, implement and promote services in ways that improve timely access to
mental health treatment services for persons and/or families from underserved populations.

O. Contractor will design, implement and promote services using strategies that are nonstigmatizing and non-discriminatory."

II.

Types of Mental Health Services/ Service Related Activities
Contractor will provide evidence based Triple P Positive Parenting Program Seminars and Level 4
group classes and Level 5 classes to parents throughout the county in collaboration with Contra Costa
Mental Health by Certified Triple P Parenting Program Providers.
Initials: ____ _____
Initials: _____/ _____

County / Contractor

County / Contractor

Service Work Plan

Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center

Number: #24-725-1

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017

III.

Program Facilities / Hours of Operation / Staffing
A. Program Facility and Contact
C.O.P.E Family Support Center
Cathy Botello, (925) 818-7583, cathy.botello@comcast.net
2280 Diamond Blvd., Suite 460
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 689-5811 office
(925) 818-7583
B. Hours of Operation
Mon through Friday
9:00 am to 5:00 pm
C. Program Staffing
Executive Director -.44 FTE 44%
Program Director – 0.22 FTE 22%
Program Coordinator – 0.33 FTE 33%
Admin Assistant – .26 FTE 26%
Program Assistant - .22 FTE 22%
Evaluation Assistant – 0.22 FTE 22%
Technical Support – 0.01 FTE 1%
Business/Accounting Manager– 0.32 FTE 32%
Childcare- .19 FTE 19%
Practitioners -61 FTE 61%
Clinical Supervisor - .02 FTE 2%

IV.

V.

Volume of Services to be provided
Contractor will provide evidence based Triple P Positive Parenting Program seminars and group classes to
approximately 204 parents throughout the county.
Billing Procedure

Initials: _____/ _____

County / Contractor

Service Work Plan

Agency: C.O.P.E. Family Support Center

Number: #24-725-1

Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017

Contractor shall submit a Demand for Payment (Form: D15.19) for services rendered to Contra Costa
Mental Health. Contractor shall attach to the billing a Monthly Contract Service/Expenditure Summary
(Form: MHP029) with actual expenditure information for the billing period.
Demands for payment should be submitted by mail to:

Michelle Rodriguez-Ziemer, LCSW
Mental Health Services Act Program Supervisor
Prevention and Early Intervention
Contra Costa County Health Services
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 200
Martinez, CA 94553
Ph. 925-957-7548
Michelle.Rodriguez-Ziemer@hsd.cccounty.us

VI.

Outcome Statements
Contractor will track the following outcomes with measures to be determined in collaboration with First 5
Contra Costa Country, Mental Health Services and C.O.P.E. Support Center.
a) Improve parenting skills.
b) Increase sense of competence in parenting abilities.
c) Improve self-awareness of parenting issues.
d) Reduce parental stress
e) Improve mental health outcomes for both children and parents.

VII.

Measures of Success
A. 80% of parents/caregivers enrolled in Level 2, Seminar Series will report an increase in
confidence based on a parent survey after attending sessions in each of the various
Triple P Discussion Group topics;."
B.

80% of parents/caregivers enrolled in Level 4, Group &/or Group Teen Triple P Series will show
increase skill development, competency and confidence in utilizing parenting skills.
Improvement will be measured by a pre and post assessment after completing an eight to ten
week intensive group training session.

C. 80% of parents/caregivers receiving Level 5, Enhanced Triple P individualized intervention will
report an increase in their ability to manage their mood and cope with everyday stress.
Improvement will be measured by a pre and post assessment after completing two to four weeks
of intensive individualized sessions. (Enhanced Triple P is a more intensive intervention of child
behavior and family functioning, Group or Teen Group is a pre-requisite for Enhanced).

Initials: _____/ _____
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Name of Program: Triple P — Positive Parenting Program
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017

D. 80% of parents/caregivers enrolled in Level 5, Lifestyles Triple P will show an increase in skill
development and strategies for managing their child’s weight by introducing gradual permanent changes
in their family’s lifestyle (e.g., healthier family eating, encourage physical activity).
E. 80% of parents/caregivers receiving Level 5, Transitions Triple P Group intervention will report
an increase in their ability to manage the transition from a two-parent family to a single-parent
family. It focuses on skills to resolve conflicts with former partners and how to cope positively
with stress.

VIII.

Measurement / Evaluation Tool
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.

IX.

Family Background Form- pre only, all workshops,
Eyberg Child Behavior Inventory- pre & post for all workshops, except seminars,
Parent Scale – pre & post for all workshops except seminars,
Depression, Anxiety, Stress Scale (DASS) – pre & post for all workshops except seminars,
Parent Satisfaction Survey-pre & post for all workshops,
Other tools as needed

Reports Required
Contractor is asked to submit a Demographics and Outcomes Measure Report to document the
program's plan/do/check/act quality process and to track statistical information (i.e. age, gender, sexual
orientation, ethnicity, race, veteran status, language, and client residence) of the target population(s)
actually served, as defined by the Contractor and approved by the County during contract award and
negotiation process. Demographic Reports are due on 1/15/2017 and 7/15/2017. Annual Outcomes
Measure Report is due on 7/15/2017
Please submit all evaluation reports via email to:
Michelle Rodriguez-Ziemer, LCSW
Mental Health Services Act Program Supervisor
Prevention and Early Intervention
Michelle.Rodriguez-Ziemer@hsd.cccounty.us

X.

Other
Promotional materials for the program should identify the funding source: "Funded by the Mental Health
Services Act in partnership with Contra Costa Mental Health". Contractor must attend the Regional
Roundtable meetings sponsored by Contra Costa Mental Health.

Initials: _____/ _____

County / Contractor

APPENDIX B
Service Provider Budget

BUDGET OF ESTIMATED PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
Agency:

Number 24-725 _

Counseling Options and Parent Education, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)
Fiscal Year 2016 — 2017
Program Category: Outreach
Triple-P Parenting

A. GROSS OPERATIONAL BUDGET

Program

1. Cost Reimbursement Categories
a. Personnel Salaries and Benefits

$166,075

b. Operational Costs (Direct)

39,608

c. Indirect Costs

26,067

2. Total Gross Allowable Program Costs

$231,750

B. LESS PROJECTED NON-COUNTY PROGRAM REVENUES
(To be collected and provided by Contractor)

0

C. NET ALLOWABLE TOTAL COSTS
$231,750
$
231,750
TOTAL CONTRACT PAYMENT LIMIT :
D. CHANGES IN COST CATEGORY AMOUNTS
Subject to the Total Payment Limit, and subject to State guidelines, each cost category Subtotal Amount set forth above:
1. May vary within each program by up to 15% without approval by County; and
2. May be changed in excess of 15% in any fiscal year period provided, however, that Contractor has obtained written
authorization prior to April 30th that fiscal year period under this Contract from the Department's Mental Health
Division Director before implementing any such budget changes.
E. PROGRAM BUDGET CHANGES
Subject to the Contract Payment Limit and subject to State guidelines, Contractor may make changes in the total
amounts set forth above for the Total Gross Allowable Program Cost and the Total Projected Non-County Program
Revenue, provided, however, that Contractor has obtained written authorization prior to April 30th of each fiscal year
period under this Contract, from the Department’s Mental Health Director, or designee, in accordance with Paragraph G,
below, before implementing any such budget changes.
F. CONTRACTOR BUDGET
Contractor will submit to County, for informational purposes upon request, its total Corporation budget including: all
program budgets, all revenue sources and projected revenue amounts, all cost allocations, and line item breakdown of
budget categories to include salary levels listed by job classification as well as detailing of operational and administrative
expenses by cost center and listing numbers of staff positions by job classification.

Initials: _________ ___________
Contractor County Dept.
Page 1 of 2

BUDGET OF ESTIMATED PROGRAM EXPENDITURES
Agency:

Number 24-725 _

G. BUDGET REPORT
No later than April 30th of each fiscal year period under this Contract, Contractor shall deliver a written Budget Report to
the Department’s Mental Health Director, or designee stating whether or not the budgeted amounts set forth in this
Budget of Estimated Program Expenditures for the Total Gross Allowable Program Cost and the Total Projected NonCounty Program Revenue for the respective fiscal year period hereunder accurately reflect the actual cost for the Service
Program. If any of these program budget amounts needs to be changed, Contractor shall include in its Budget Report a
complete copy of the revised Budget of Estimated Program Expenditures, an explanation of the program budget and
revenue changes, and a request for prior written authorization to implement the changes in accordance with Paragraph
E, above, subject to Special Conditions Paragraph 2 (Cost Report).

Initials: _________ ___________
Contractor County Dept.
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APPENDIX C
Yearly External Fiscal Audit
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(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon)
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Counseling Options and Parenting Education
Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)
Concord, California
We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Counseling Options and
Parenting Education Family Support Center, Inc., (C.O.P.E.) as of June 30, 2016, and the related
statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements. The prior year summarized comparative information has been
derived from C.O.P.E.’s 2015 audited financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
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Board of Directors
Counseling Options and Parenting Education
Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)
Concord, California
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Counseling Options and Parenting Education Family Support Center, Inc.
(C.O.P.E.) as of June 30, 2016, and changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matter
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The schedule of functional expenses on page 15 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the financial statements as a whole.
Fechter & Company,
Certified Public Accountants

Sacramento, California
March 2, 2017
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF JUNE 30, 2016
(With Summarized Financial Information at June 30, 2015)

UNRESTRICTED

ASSETS

TEMPORARILY
RESTRICTED

TOTALS
2016

SUMMARIZED
TOTALS
2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Accounts and grants receviable (Note 4)
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

$

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
DEPOSITS
TOTAL ASSETS

3,009
119,566
1,866
4,200

$

-

$

3,009
119,566
1,866
4,200

$

104,658
2,462
282

128,641

-

128,641

107,402

500

-

500

500

$

129,141

$

-

$

129,141

$

107,902

$

49,214
4,200
5,876

$

-

$

49,214
4,200
5,876

$

14,299
41,094
2,823

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Cash overdraft
Accounts payable - vendors
Commercial Insurance-Financed
Workers compensation clearing account
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted (Note 8)
TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$

59,290

-

59,290

58,216

69,851
-

-

69,851
-

49,686
-

69,851

-

69,851

49,686

129,141

$

-

$

129,141
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$

107,902

COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
SUPPORT:
Individuals
Fundraising

UNRESTRICTED
$

2,532
6,319

TEMPORARILY
RESTRICTED
$

-

TOTAL
2016
$

2,532
6,319

SUMMARIZED
TOTAL
2015
$

4,704
10,978

8,851

15,682

455,476
-

455,476
41,642
18
1,212

465,128
8,525
20,786
29
103

42,872

455,476

498,348

494,571

Net Assets Released From Restrictions

455,476

(455,476)

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

507,199

-

507,199

510,253

428,673
23,895
34,466

-

428,673
23,895
34,466

451,909
36,344
7,340

487,034

-

487,034

495,593

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

20,165

-

20,165

14,660

Net Assets, Beginning of year

49,686

-

49,686

35,026

69,851

-

69,851

TOTAL SUPPORT

8,851

REVENUE:
Government contracts
Sublease rental income
Fee for service
Interest income
Miscellaneous income

41,642
18
1,212

TOTAL REVENUE

-

-

-

EXPENSES
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising
TOTAL EXPENSES

Net Assets, End of year

$
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$

49,686

COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Changes in Net Assets

UNRESTRICTED

TEMPORARILY
RESTRICTED

$

$

20,165

-

TOTALS

2016

$

20,165

SUMMARIZED
TOTALS
2015

$

14,660

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets
to cash provided (used) by operating activities
CHANGES IN CURRENT ASSETS AND

CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Increase) in accounts and grants receivable
(Increase) in prepaid expenses
Decrease in inventory
Decrease in accounts payable
Increase in workers compensation clearing account
Increase in commercial insurance clearing account
(Decrease) in deferred revenue

(14,908)
(3,918)
526
8,120
3,053
4,200
-

-

(13,577)
6,314
7,701
(27,340)
2,823

-

(14,908)
(3,918)
526
8,120
3,053
4,200
-

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

17,238

-

17,238

(17,181)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

17,238

-

17,238

(17,181)

(7,762)

CASH (OVERDRAFT) beginning of year

$

(14,229)

$

-

$

(14,229)

$

2,952

CASH end of year

$

3,009

$

-

$

3,009

$

(14,229)
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION
GENERAL
Counseling Options and Parent Education Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.) (the
Organization) is a non-profit corporation, established in September 2010, incorporated
under the Nonprofit Benefit Corporate Law for public and charitable purposes. The
Organization’s mission is to prevent child abuse, provide comprehensive services to
strengthen family relationships and bonds, empower parents, foster healthy relationships,
and cultivate family units that encourage an optimal environment for the healthy growth
and development of parents and children through parent education.
PROGRAMS AND CONTRACTS
The following are the Organization’s programs and related funding sources:
Triple P Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) – A program that has demonstrated,
through evidence, to prevent and treat behavioral, emotional and developmental problems
in children by enhancing the knowledge, skills, and confidence of parents. All of this is
done through a strength-based and self-reflective approach that builds upon existing
parenting strengths. The classes offered under this program are:


Group Triple P Classes: these are groups of no more than 12 parents that attend
9-15 sessions and are supported with two phone counseling sessions at home. This
program provides specialized strategies and education for parents of children in
the age groups of 0-12. This service aids parents in



Group Teen Triple P Classes: these are groups of no more than 12 parents that
attend 9-15 sessions and are supported with two phone counseling sessions at
home. This program provides specialized strategies and education for parents of
teens in the age groups of 13-17.



Triple P Positive Parenting Seminars: for groups of parents of children in
elementary, middle and high schools that focus on positive ways to promote
children’s development. Each seminar is 1 ½ hours long and includes an
informational presentation followed by a question and answer session.
Participants will receive a tip-sheet with the information covered. Our seminars
focus on a variety of topics including: 1. Positive Parenting; 2. Raising confident,
competent children; 3. Raising resilient children 4. Dealing with bullying.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION (Continued)
PROGRAMS AND CONTRACTS (Continued)
 Triple P Primary Care Sessions (Coaching Sessions): Primary Care Triple P is
a brief targeted intervention in a one-to-one format that assists parents to develop
parenting plans to manage behavioral issues (e.g. tantrums, fighting, going
shopping) and skill development issues (e.g. eating independently, toilet training,
staying in bed at night). Practitioners provide 3-4 sessions over a period of 4-6
weeks. Sessions can be done in a group or one-on-one.


Pathways Triple P: Pathways Triple P has been developed as an intensive
intervention program for parents who have difficulty regulating their emotions and
as a result are considered at risk of physically or emotionally harming their
children.



Enhanced Triple P Classes: Parents who benefit from Enhanced Triple P are
those who deal with family issues such as stress, poor coping, partner conflict or
mental health issues. The program addresses family factors that may impact upon,
and complicate the task of parenting (e.g., parental mood, partner conflict).



Stepping Stones Triple P Individual and Group classes for parents of special
needs children: Group Stepping Stones Triple P has been developed for parents
of children with cognitive, physical, and/or developmental challenges that have
behavior difficulties.

 Parenting Classes for Parents of Truant Children and Teens: This program is

tailored for parents of teens who are consistently truant in their perspective
schools. Both parents and teens are taught the tools necessary to address and
resolve the issues surrounding the teen’s school attendance. This program teaches
parents how to identify truancy, the causes of teen truancy, how to work towards a
solution, and improve communication with their teen to ensure regular school
attendance. Small workshops are held in therapeutic settings.
Family Transitions Triple P: This program focuses on families going through a
separation or divorce, and are experiencing unresolved conflicts or have difficulty
communicating effectively. The course is designed to assist parents in building
and maintaining a healthy co-parenting relationship, while providing strategies to
manage conflicts and stressful situations.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION (Continued)
PROGRAMS AND CONTRACTS (Continued)
The Triple P program is funded through:


A contract agreement between the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Prevention and Early Intervention Services and the Contra Costa County Health
Services-Behavioral Health Services/Mental Health (the County) with a
subcontract provision for the Organization to administer the Triple P program.
Under the terms of the agreement, the County paid the Organization an amount not
to exceed $225,000 for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.



A standard agreement with the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families
Commission under a contract for an amount not to exceed $142,600 from
July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.

Supporting Fatherhood Classes (SFI) – A program that encourages the father’s active
involvement in their children’s lives. SFI examines five areas of growth, individual
adjustment, couple relationship, skills and competence as a parent, impact of the larger
community, and generational models. SFI is funded through:


A standard agreement with the Contra Costa Employment and Human Services
under a contract for an amount not to exceed $82,746 from July 1, 2015, through
June 30, 2016.

The following programs are funded by fee for service arrangements with the
Organization’s clients.


Individual Psychotherapy: Working one-on-one, with families or in group with
a therapist on issues such as depression, anxiety, stress, post-traumatic stress
disorder, anger management, life transitions, substance abuse, single or coparenting, divorce mediation and other personal or emotional issues to help you
move forward in life and reach your goals. Our therapists are from diverse
backgrounds, orientations and culturally sensitive. Spanish, English, Arabic and
Farsi languages available.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION (Continued)
PROGRAMS AND CONTRACTS (Continued)
 Anti-Bullying Program: School Staff/Teacher support in identifying bullying
behavior, providing evidence-based methods to intervene and address the issue,
and creating safe and supportive classroom/school environments. $250.00. Parent
workshops teach strategies and support parents of children involved in any aspect
of bullying or in need of general information. Cost TBA.
 Anger Management: Twenty-six-week anger management for adults or teens:
Recognize and normalize anger, gain better understanding and self-control. Learn
different ways to manage stress and improve emotional intelligence and
communication. Registration and book fee:
$55.00; additionally, Group:
$25/session, or Individual sessions: $60.00/session.
 Teen Truancy: This course is delivered over nine weeks for parents of truant
children and teens who are truant to address these numerous issues. The class
addresses the factors contributing to truancy, the consequences, and changes to be
made.
NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting and Reporting – The Organization’s accounting records are
maintained on the accrual basis of accounting generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Use of Estimates – In preparing financial statements in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, management must make estimates based on future
events that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements; and revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents – The Organization’s cash and cash equivalents balance
consists of amounts held in checking and savings accounts in large financial institutions
and investments maturing in less than 90 days.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments – Financial instruments consist of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Organization’s financial assets are cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. The Organization’s financial liabilities are accounts payable and
deferred revenue.
None of the financial instruments are held for trading. The fair value of these financial
instruments approximate the carrying amounts because the value of the short maturity of
these instruments. The fair value estimates have not been recorded or reported for
financial statement purposes because of the short term maturity of these financial
instruments and because the financial instruments are not held for trading.
Prepaid Expenses – Prepaid expenses are amortized over the period of future benefit.
Furniture and Equipment – Furniture and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for
furniture and equipment purchases over $1,500 are capitalized and depreciated over five
to ten years using the straight-line method. When assets are retired or sold, the related
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and gain or loss arising
from such disposition is included as income or expense. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are charged to expenses as incurred. There were no assets capitalized during
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.
Donated Materials and Services – Donated materials are recorded at their fair value on the
date of donation. Donated services by individuals providing administration services are
not recorded as donated services as there are no special skills required for these services.
Deposits – Deposits consist of security deposit amounts held with a leasing company and
are recorded at the time the lease agreement was signed.
Functional Allocation of Expenses – Costs of providing the programs, administrative
duties, and fundraising activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
accompanying statement of functional expenses. Certain indirect costs have been
allocated directly to programs and administration based upon ratios determined by
management. These costs primarily include salaries, fringe benefits, occupancy, and other
expenses.
Income Taxes
The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. There
was no taxable unrelated business income during the year ended June 30, 2016.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income Taxes – (Continued)
The Organization has implemented the accounting requirements associated with
uncertainty in income taxes. The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued guidance
that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
Organization’s financial statements. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be
recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the positions will be
sustained upon examination by the tax authorities.
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization has no uncertain tax positions that
qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. The Organization’s
tax years for 2012 through 2015 remain open and could be subject to examination by the
federal tax jurisdiction. For the state tax jurisdiction, the tax years 2012 through 2015
remain open and could be subject to examination. There was no taxable unrelated business
income during 2016.
Contributions and Grant Revenue – The Organization receives contributions and grants
from corporations, foundations, charitable organizations and individuals. Contributions
and grants are presented in accordance with presented Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 958, Not-For-Profit
Entities. ASC 958, 605 Not-For-Profit Entities-Revenue Recognition.
The provisions of ASC 958, 605 require the Organization to recognize contributions and
grants as either temporarily or permanently restricted support, if they are received with
donor stipulations that limit the use of the contribution or grant.
When a temporary restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the
purpose of the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified
as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released
from restrictions.
All other contributions are recognized upon receipt. Grant amounts received but not yet
earned are reported as deferred revenue.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial Statement Presentation –The Organization’s financial statements are presented
in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) Topic 958, Not-For-Profit Entities. Under FASB ASC Topic 958, the
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets based upon the existence or absence of
donor imposed restrictions, as follows:
Unrestricted Net Assets – represent resources over which the Board of Directors has
discretionary control and that are neither permanently restricted nor temporarily restricted
by donor-imposed stipulations.
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets – represent resources whose use by the Organization is
limited by donor imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be
fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. There were no
temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2016.
Permanently Restricted Net Assets – represent resources whose use by the Organization is
limited by donor imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be
fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Organization. The Organization has no
permanently restricted net assets.
Generally, the donor of these assets permits the recipient organization unrestrictive use of
earnings from these assets to support the general operations of the recipient organization.
There were no permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2016.
Summarized Financial Information for 2015 – The financial information for the year
ended June 30, 2015, was presented for comparative purposes, and is not intended to be a
complete financial statement presentation.
NOTE 3: CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Cash Deposits In Excess Of Federal Limits
The financial instruments, which potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of
credit risk, consist principally of cash and temporary cash investments.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 3: CONCENTRATION OF RISK (Continued)
Cash Deposits In Excess Of Federal Limits
The Organization maintains their operating cash accounts in one financial institution. The
cash deposits maintained at the financial institution is insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. The operating cash account balance was
below the federally insured limit at June 30, 2016.
Government Contracts
The Organization receives significant amounts of revenue from governmental contracts.
Should funding from these grants be changed due to a change in budgeting or due to
cutbacks, such reduction in funding might have an adverse effect on the Organization’s
programs and activities.
NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts and grants receivable at June 30, 2016, represent funds earned but not yet
received from current contracts and grants as follows:
Grantors
CC First 5 Children and Families Commission
CCC Behavior Health Services/Mental
Promoting Safe and Stable Families
Other
Total

$

22,070
52,626
44,737
133

$ 119,566

The Organization does not believe that an allowance for doubtful accounts is required for
any of the accounts and grants receivable as of June 30, 2016.
NOTE 5: CREDIT CARDS
The Organization used credit cards to facilitate purchases of supplies and other items
used in operations. A description of the credit cards is as follows:


A credit card which has a revolving credit limit of $17,000. The annual interest
rate is 14.24%. There is a balance outstanding at June 30, 2016, of $1,556 which
is included in accounts payable.



A credit card which has a credit limit of $11,000. The annual interest rates on the
credit limit is 23.15%. There is a balance outstanding on the credit limit at
June 30, 2016, of $2,492 which is included in accounts payable.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 6: COMMITMENTS
The Organization entered into a new lease agreement in the same office building to lease
office space in Concord, California. The Organization is using the additional, unfurnished
space for storage. The terms of the office lease agreement began December 31, 2013, and
end on June 30, 2016. The monthly rent of $1,550 is due on the first day of each month
starting December 31, 2013, through June 30, 2016. The monthly rent increases to $1,612
through the remainder of the lease term.
The Organization entered into a five year operating lease agreement to lease a copy
machine. The lease agreement requires minimum lease payments of $140 per month.
Lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2016, was $1,680.
Minimum future lease and rent payments are as follows:
Year ended June 30,
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Totals

Amount
$
1,680
1,680
1,680
1,680
1,680
$ 8,400

NOTE 7: CONTINGENCIES
Grant awards require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the instruments of
the grant. Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of the funds to the
grantors. The Organization deems this contingency remote since, by accepting the grants
and their terms, it has accommodated the objectives of the provisions of the grant.
Management is of the opinion that the Organization has complied with the terms of all
grants.
NOTE 8: EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has reviewed the results of operations for the period of time from its
year end June 30, 2016, through March 2, 2017, the date which the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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COUNSELING OPTIONS AND PARENTING EDUCATION
FAMILY SUPPORT CENTER, INC. (C.O.P.E.)
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

PROGRAM

PERSONNEL
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Workers compensation

$

FUNDRAISING

$

$

313,563

TOTAL PERSONNEL
OPERATING
Staff mileage expense
Facility costs
Insurance
Food and incentives
Program training
Supplies
Occupancy
Telephone
Office Expense
Postage
Printing
Dues, fees and subscriptions
Equipment lease
Board expenses
Fundraising expense
Fiscal fees
Indirect expense: outreach
Miscellaneous
TOTAL EXPENSES

276,319
33,360
3,884

MANAGEMENT/
GENERAL

1,331
8,204
3,827
14,616
35,001
28,336
13,837
3,260
2,600
62
(310)
346
1,816
154
638
1,392
$

428,673

$

10,049
804
89

30,702
3,704
-

10,942

34,406

2,286
62
1,851
1,572
6,106
5
167
747
130
20
7

60
-

23,895

$

34,466

TOTALS
2016
$

317,070
37,868
3,973

SUMMARIZED
TOTALS
2015
$

358,911

298,274

1,331
8,204
6,113
14,616
35,001
28,398
15,688
4,832
8,706
67
(310)
513
2,563
284
60
658
1,399
$

487,034
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267,262
27,249
3,763

841
255
11,606
40,215
31,179
16,720
4,833
3,997
221
190
570
332
133
4,087
27,313
2,047
$

442,813

ADDITIONAL REPORTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Counseling Options and Parenting Education
Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)
Concord, California
We have audited the financial statements of the Counseling Options and Parenting Education Family
Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.) (the Organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 2, 2017. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Organization’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial
reporting.
A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Organization’s ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Organization’s financial
statements, that is more than inconsequential, will not be prevented or detected by the Organization’s
internal control.
A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will
not be prevented or detected by the Organization’s internal control.
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Board of Directors
Counseling Options and Parenting Education
Family Support Center, Inc. (C.O.P.E.)
Concord, California
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors,
audit committee, and grant awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
Fechter & Company,
Certified Public Accountants

Sacramento, California
March 2, 2017
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APPENDIX D
Organization Chart

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Program and Fiscal Review

I.

Date of On-site Review: June 29, 2017
Date of Exit Meeting: September 26, 2017

II.

Review Team: Stephanie Chenard, Warren Hayes, Jennifer Bruggeman

III.

Name of Plan Element:

IV.

Program Description. The Behavioral Health Services Division of Contra Costa
Health Services combines Mental Health, Alcohol & Other Drugs and Homeless
Program into a single system of care. The First Hope program operates within
Contra Costa Mental Health’s Children’s System of Care that serves children and
young adults.

First Hope
1034 Oak Grove Road
Concord, CA 94518

First Hope uses the PIER Model evidence-based practice focused on treatment
of mental illness in young people. The model includes Multifamily Group
treatment and is published, disseminated, and managed through the PIER
Training Institute.
The mission of the First Hope program is to reduce the incidence and associated
disability of psychotic illnesses in Contra Costa County through:
 Early Identification of young people between ages 12 and 25 who are
showing very early signs of psychosis and are determined to be at risk for
developing a serious mental illness.
 Engaging and providing immediate treatment to those identified as “at
risk”, while maintaining progress in school, work and social relationships.
 Providing an integrated, multidisciplinary team approach including
psychoeducation, multi-family groups, individual and family counseling,
case management, occupational therapy, supported education and
vocation and psychiatric management within a single service model.
 Outreach and community education with the following goals: 1) identifying
all young people in Contra Costa County who are at risk for developing a
psychotic disorder and would benefit from early intervention services; and
2) reducing stigma and barriers that prevent or delay seeking treatment
through educational presentations.
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V.

Purpose of Review.
Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided, b)
more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this
plan element in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the future.

VI.

Summary of Findings.
Topic
1. Deliver services according to the
values of the MHSA

Met
Standard
Met

Notes
Consumers and family
members indicate the
program meets the values
of MHSA

2. Serve the agreed upon target
population.

Met

Program improves timely
access to an underserved
population.

3. Provide the services for which
funding was allocated.

Met

Funds services consistent
with the agreed upon
Service Work Plan.

4. Meet the needs of the community
and/or population.

Met

Services are consistent
with the Three Year Plan

5. Serve the number of individuals
that have been agreed upon.

Unmet

6. Achieve the outcomes that have
been agreed upon.

Met

The number of individuals
to be served has not been
specified but should be
identified for future
evaluation
Program meets its
outcomes

7. Quality Assurance

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality
of protected health information.

Partially
Met

Met

Utilization review indicated
program meets most
quality assurance
standards
The program is HIPAA
compliant
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9. Staffing sufficient for the program

Met

Staffing levels support
service provision as
outlined in the Three Year
Plan

10. Annual independent fiscal audit

N/A

This is a County operated
program.

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to
deliver and sustain the services

Met

MHSA funded share is
appropriate for existing
programming.

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with
generally accepted accounting
principles

Met

The process has sufficient
quality control to support
expenditures.

Not Met

Allocation to appropriate
cost centers needs
correction, regular review
and adjustment if needed.

14. Documentation sufficient to
support allowable expenditures

Met

The program is in
conformity with authorized.
budgeted amount.

15. Documentation sufficient to
support expenditures invoiced in
appropriate fiscal year

Met

Documentation supports
that funds are expended in
the appropriate fiscal year

16. Administrative costs sufficiently
justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program

N/A

The County does not
apply indirect costs to the
program.

17. Insurance policies sufficient to
comply with contract
18. Effective communication between
contract manager and contractor

N/A

This is a County program

Met

Regular communication
between MHSA staff and
program manager

13. Documentation sufficient to
support invoices

VII.

Review Results.

The review covered the following areas:

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).
Does the plan element collaborate with the community, provide an integrated
service experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be culturally
competent, and be client and family driven.
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Method. Consumer, family member and service provider interviews and
consumer surveys.
Discussion.
Survey Results
We received 18 responses to the survey. The majority of the survey responses
were consistent with consumer interviews; namely, they show a positive
evaluation of the program; and that the program adheres to MHSA values.
Questions

Responses: n=18

Please indicate how strongly you
agree or disagree with the
following statements regarding
persons who work with you:

Strongly Agree
Agree

1. Help me improve my health and
wellness.

Average score: 3.61 (n=18)

2. Allow me to decide what my own
strengths and needs

Average score: 3.59 (n=17)

3. Work with me to determine the
services that are most helpful

Average score: 3.65 (n=17)

4

3

Disagree Strongly I don’t
Disagree know
2

1

n/a

4. Provide services that are sensitive Average score: 3.53 (n=17)
to my cultural background.
5. Provide services that are in my
preferred language

Average score: 3.89 (n=18)

6. Help me in getting needed health,
employment, education and other
benefits and services.

Average score: 3.65 (n=17)

7. Are open to my opinions as to
how services should be provided

Average score: 3.65 (n=17)

8. What does this program do well?







Provide help necessary for my
communication in co-parenting
It really helps me with any problems I have
and people are very patient.
This program does a good job providing a
welcoming, friendly environment for me and
other patients as well as providing great
services to help aid with therapy, medication,
etc.
Educating parents and patients alike and
helping patients overcome their symptoms.
4




Help me feel better, confident, stronger, and
teach me and explain what I'm going
through.
This program helps me to understand what
my child is going through and how I can
support her.

9. What does this program need to
improve upon?





They really should get a working kitchen.
Automating the calendar for appointments.
Trying to explain more detailed what one
might feel.

10. What needed services and
supports are missing?



Give more support for parents going through
transition (divorce, etc.) so that they can coparent better.
I think this place needs to be shown to the
public more.



11. How important is this program in
helping you improve your health
and wellness, live a self-directed
life, and reach your full potential?

Very
Important

Important

Somewhat
Important

Not
Important

4

3

2

1

Average score: 3.72 (n=18)
12. Any additional comments?





[This program] saved our family.
If it wasn't for First Hope, I don't know how
we would have made it. We were very
ignorant about psychosis.
This program is very helpful and the people
here are very kind and respectful.

Consumer Interview
The consumer interview session was attended by eleven consumers and family
members. The length of times that each consumer/family had been involved with
the program ranged from one to three years. Consumers reported their initial
referrals to First Hope came from a variety of areas such as, psychiatric
emergency services, therapists from private hospitals or county clinics, NAMI,
and from church. Overall, the consumers and family members were very
appreciative of the services provided by First Hope. They all felt strongly that
there was cultural grounding for them in their treatment, and that their input was
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solicited and valued as part of the treatment plan. During the interview, some of
the other things specifically identified as positives of the program were:
 Parents were better able to develop tools to recognize and handle the onset
of an episode.
 The “whole family” approach of First Hope was useful – previous experience
had been parents seeking “a la carte” services. The “one-stop-shop”
programming of First Hope meant they didn’t have to keep retelling their
stories or situation each time they saw a new service provider or specialist.
 The flexibility of the program was key – able to help with IEP meetings at
school, could get services in their home, flexibility of times for appointments
and groups.
 Multi-family groups were very helpful in reducing isolation and having peer
perspective.
These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values. However, the
families also identified some areas of improvement. Several consumers voiced a
desire for separate peer support groups and other activities focused solely on
youth without family members present. Both consumers and family members
also felt there was a gap in after care – they weren’t quite sure what next steps or
supports were available once the program concluded. Lastly, several
participants indicated they thought the program could use more outreach to let
more families know that the resource was there and available.
Staff Interviews
Eleven line staff were interviewed in a group session. There was a breadth of
staff, including an employment and education specialist, occupational therapist,
community support worker, several clinicians, and a team lead. They have
worked with First Hope ranging from a few weeks, to when the program first
launched. Notably, there were several bilingual staff members to serve the
County’s Latino population. The staff had many positive things to contribute
about the program, including the ability to serve clients regardless of insurance;
the family-based treatment model is very effective, particularly in cultures that are
very family-centric; flexibility of the model to help “meet (clients) where they are;”
fidelity to the model gives strong guidance to newer clinicians and helps all
practitioners feel grounded in treatment strategies.
Staff also identified several areas of improvement. The limited space in the
program has presented challenges to treatments, particularly when meeting with
clients; the frequent shifting of meeting spaces due to lack of availability was
called out as hindrance to the stabilizing factor of treatment. Staff also indicated
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a desire for more possible locations in different regions of the county to host
group sessions, citing transportation challenges as a barrier. Staff also noted a
gap in discharge and post-discharge planning. They indicated that the transition
out of the program is often difficult due to the lack of step-down programming and
support; lack of family support or programming after discharge may often bring
symptoms back to the youth consumer. This challenge is also echoed in the
consumer and family feedback.
First Hope strives to be a supportive community where individuals and families
learn how to manage their challenges, and serve as a provider of direct early
intervention services.
Results. First Hope delivers services according to the values of the MHSA. The
program delivers programming at locations that are generally accessible to
participants; staff is culturally and linguistically competent and maintains close
ties to the community it serves.
2. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Prevention and Early
Intervention, does the program serve individuals and families who are at risk for
developing a serious mental illness or serious emotional disturbance. Does the
program serve the agreed upon target population (such as age group,
underserved community).
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.
Discussion. First Hope’s target population is 12-25 year old transition age youth
Contra Costa County residents experiencing early symptoms of psychosis, and
their families. The program also serves Hispanic families, many of whom are
monolingual.
Results. The program serves the agreed upon target population.
3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.
Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service
provider interviews.
Discussion. Monthly service summaries as well as semi-annual reports show
that the program is consistently engaged in outreach and screening activities, is
providing support groups and individual navigation supports.
Results. The program provides the services for which funding was allocated.
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4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed. Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
program planning process. Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year
Program and Expenditure Plan.
Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.
Discussion. Programming for Building Connection in Underserved Cultural
Communities was included in the original PEI plan that was approved in May
2009 and included in subsequent plan updates. The program has been
authorized by the Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current MHSA
Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan as well as the proposed PEI
regulations on prevention programs. Program strategies pursue timely access
and linkage to mental health services for individuals and families from
underserved populations, which are non-stigmatizing and non-discriminatory.
Interviews with service providers and program participants support the notion that
the program meets its goals and the needs of the community it serves.
Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population for
which it is designated.
5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years.
Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.
Discussion. While First Hope consistently reports numbers served through
monthly and semi-annual annual reports, there are no specified numbers of
individuals to be served First Hope.
Results. The program needs to define the number of individuals to be served.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description, and verify validity of outcome with
supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome domains
include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric crisis,
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meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of life,
and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.
Discussion. First Hope has identified its primary program objectives including:
help clients manage prodromal symptoms; help clients maintain progress in
school, work, relationships; reduce the stigma associated with symptoms;
prevent development of psychotic illnesses; reduce necessity to access
psychiatric emergency serves/ inpatient care. The program provides monthly
and semi-annual reports summarizing their progress towards meeting their
program outcomes.
Results. Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives.
7. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision.
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.
Discussion. No grievances were filed related to the clinic services that are the
subject of this review. All clinic programs undergo Level One and Level Two
Utilization Reviews on a regular basis. Percentage of disallowances found during
Level Two Utilization Reviews of charts sampled from each County billing
reporting unit are reported to the Quality Management Committee on a quarterly
basis and findings are addressed at the clinic level. Additionally, staff from the
First Hope participate on the Quality Management Committee. Implementation of
the “Evidence-Based Practices” plan element is part of Behavioral Health
Services’ annual Quality Improvement Plan. Level 1 and Level 2 utilization
review reports indicate that the First Hope Program generally meets
documentation and quality standards.
On April 28, 2017, a Level Two Centralized Utilization Chart Review and a
Focused Review was conducted by the CCBHS Utilization Review team. The
results show that charts generally met documentation standards, with a few
compliance issues, to include incorrect insurance coverage (private vs. MediCal), incomplete assessments, incomplete partnership plans, and improperly
corrected progress notes. There were several other findings related to
disallowances for services outside of provider’s scope of practice, missing
progress notes, missing partnership plan and/or assessment, and incorrectly
billed activities.
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First Hope submitted an appeal on June 1, 2017 for several of the disallowances,
with significant discussion on the progress notes determined to be out of scope
for the provider at issue. The discussion focuses on the actual language in the
notes that depict that the services delivered were in the scope allowable for the
provider’s licensure status. The County’s Quality Improvement Coordinator
granted the majority of their appeal. An additional plan of correction was
submitted for the few follow-up items that remained in this review process.
Results. The program has a quality assurance process in place. However, it is
recommended that First Hope continue to provide training to their clinical staff on
consistent clinical documentation.
8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol.
Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the plan element’s implementation of a protocol
for safeguarding protected patient health information.
Discussion. Staff observe HIPAA requirements. All staff are required to
complete HIPAA training on an annual basis. The County also has a Privacy
Officer in charge of protecting client information.
Results. First Hope ensures the protection of confidential protected health
information.
9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support.
Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.
Discussion. All positions for which funding was allocated are filled.
Results. There is sufficient staffing for the program.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.
Results. The program is County operated and does not conduct an annual
financial audit.
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Discussion. Not applicable.
11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain plan element.
Method. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Results. First Hope has been authorized by the County with sufficient
resources to maintain the existing program.
Discussion. Fiscal resources are sufficient.
12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager of program.
Results. The lead Clerk Specialist was interviewed and demonstrated the
process by which personnel and operating costs are entered and tracked.
Discussion. First Hope operates in accordance with prescribed County policies
and procedures.
13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Does the organization’s
financial reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.
Results. Expenses were reviewed for allocation to the appropriate County cost
centers. The monthly MHSA financial cost summaries indicate that while costs
are appropriate, the allocation to appropriate cost centers need review and action
at CCBHS Administration. Charges for contract psychiatry time are being
charged 100% cost center 5727 (MHSA), when the costs should be split between
5727 and 5948 (Children’s Realignment). Also all operating costs are being
charged to 5727, when differential cost centers should be considered and applied
at CCBHS Administration, depending upon the particular expense.
Discussion. Allocation of First Hope personnel and operating costs to the
appropriate cost centers should be reviewed and adjusted on a regular basis at
CCBHS Administration.
14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
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Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures charged to the cost center (county) or invoiced to the
county (contractor).
Results. Several random transactions were validated against supporting
documentation for the program. Expenditures are in conformity with authorized
amounts for both personnel and operating costs. .
Discussion. The program is in conformity with the authorized budgeted amounts
for both personnel and operating costs.
15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).
Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.
Results. This is a County operated program and complies with the accrual basis
of accounting.
Discussion. There is sufficient documentation to support expenditures invoiced
in the appropriate year.
16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Results. The County does not apply an indirect cost to the program.
Discussion. Not applicable
17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.
Method. Review insurance policies.
Discussion. The program is part of the County and is not subject to maintaining
separate insurance policies.
Results. Not applicable.
18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
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Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
Discussion. Program staff and MHSA staff communicate regularly and in recent
months increasingly to discuss outcomes and reporting requirements.
Results. The program has good communication with the contract manager.

VIII.

Summary of Results.
First Hope is committed to delivering culturally and linguistically appropriate
mental health services to Contra Costa County young people between ages 12
and 25 who are showing very early signs of psychosis and are determined to be
at risk for developing a serious mental illness. Their prevention and early
intervention services seek to reduce the incidence and associated disability of
psychotic illness by engaging the youth and their families. The First Hope
program is appropriately staffed, adheres to the values of MHSA, and serves
their target population. The program is meeting the outcomes detailed in the
program description. Clients fully endorsed the positive impact the programs
have had on their health and wellbeing.

IX.

Findings for Further Attention.




X.

First Hope should work with the CCBHS administration to define the
number of individuals to be served.
It is recommended that First Hope continue to provide training to their
clinical staff on consistent clinical documentation.
Allocation of First Hope personnel and operating costs to the appropriate
cost centers should be reviewed and adjusted on a regular basis at
CCBHS Administration.

Next Review Date. June 2020
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II.

Appendices.

Appendix A – Program Description
III.

Working Documents that Support Findings.

Consumer, Family Member Surveys
Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
County Utilization Review Report
Progress Reports, Outcomes
MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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Appendix A
Program Description
First Hope (Contra Costa Behavioral Health)
Point of Contact: Jude Leung, Mental Health Program Manager
Contact Information: 1034 Oak Grove Rd, Concord, CA 94518 (925) 681-4450
yatmingjude.leung@hsd.cccounty.us
1. General Description of the Organization
The Behavioral Health Services Division of Contra Costa Health Services combines
Mental Health, Alcohol & Other Drugs and Homeless Program into a single system
of care. The First Hope program operates within Contra Costa Mental Health’s
Children’s System of Care but is a hybrid program serving both children and young
adults.
2. Program: First Hope: Early Identification and Intervention in Psychosis - PEI
a. Scope of Service: The mission of the First Hope program is to reduce the
incidence and associated disability of psychotic illnesses in Contra Costa County
through:
 Early Identification of young people between ages 12 and 25 who are
showing very early signs of psychosis and are determined to be at risk for
developing a serious mental illness.
 Engaging and providing immediate treatment to those identified as “at
risk”, while maintaining progress in school, work and social relationships.
 Providing an integrated, multidisciplinary team approach including
psychoeducation, multi-family groups, individual and family counseling,
case management, occupational therapy, supported education and
vocation and psychiatric management within a single service model.
 Outreach and community education with the following goals: 1) identifying
all young people in Contra Costa County who are at risk for developing a
psychotic disorder and would benefit from early intervention services; and
2) reducing stigma and barriers that prevent or delay seeking treatment
through educational presentations.
b. Target Population: 12-25 year old transition age youth and their families
c. Total Budget: $1,685,607
d. Staff: 14 FTE full time equivalent multi-disciplinary staff
e. Number served: For FY 14-15: 124 clients and their families served
(assessments and clinical services). On any given day, the between 55 and 70
clients and their families are open to services. Additionally, First Hope provided
ongoing outreach education reaching 571 participants in the community and 155
initial phone screenings and consultation to at risk individuals, families, or
providers.
f. Outcomes:
Help clients manage prodromal symptoms
Help clients maintain progress in school, work, relationships
Reduce the stigma associated with symptoms
Prevent development of psychotic illnesses
15

Reduce necessity to access psychiatric emergency serves/ inpatient care

Long Term Public Health Outcomes:

Reduce conversion rate from prodromal symptoms to schizophrenia
Reduce incidence of psychotic illnesses in Contra Costa County.
Increase community awareness and acceptance of the value and advantages of

seeking mental health care early.
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Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Program and Fiscal Review

I.

Date of On-site Review: May 18, 2017
Date of Exit Meeting: September 28, 2017

II.

Review Team: Stephanie Chenard, Warren Hayes, Windy Murphy

III.

Name of Program: Familias Fuertes and Vías de Salud
La Clinica Pittsburg, 2240 Gladstone Drive, Suite 4, Pittsburg, CA 94565
La Clinica Monument, 2000 Sierra Road, Concord, CA, 94518

IV.
V.

Program Description.
With 34 sites spread across Alameda, Contra Costa and Solano Counties, La
Clínica de La Raza, Inc. (La Clínica) has 46 years of experience delivering
comprehensive, culturally and linguistically appropriate, clinical and community
health care services to address the needs of the diverse populations it
serves. La Clínica is the 8th largest federally qualified health center in California.
Under MHSA funding, La Clínica delivers the Vías de Salud (Pathways to Health)
program that targets Latinos residing in Central and East Contra Costa County
with: a) 3,000 depression screenings; b) 500 assessment and early intervention
services provided by a Behavioral Health Specialists to identify risk of mental
illness or emotional distress, or other risk factors such as social isolation; and
c) 1,000 follow up support/brief treatment services to adults covering a variety of
topics such as depression, anxiety, isolation, stress, communication and cultural
adjustment. This La Clínica PEI program category is Improving Timely Access to
Services for Underserved Populations.
Additionally, La Clinica also delivers the Familias Fuertes (Strong Families)
program that seeks to educate and support Latino parents and caregivers living
in Central and East Contra Costa County so that they can support the strong
development of their children and youth. The project activities include:
1) Screening for risk factors in youth ages 0-18 (750 screenings); 2) 150
Assessments (includes child functioning and parent education/support) with a
Behavioral Health Specialist provided to parents/caretakers of children ages 018; 3), Two hundred (200) follow up visits with children/families to provide
psycho-education/brief treatment regarding behavioral health issues including
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parent education, psycho-social stressors/risk factors and behavioral health
issues. The goal is designed to help create access and linkage to mental health
treatment, promote ways that improve timely access to mental health treatment
services for persons and/or families from underserved populations, and uses
strategies that are non-stigmatizing and non-discriminatory.
VI.

Purpose of Review.
Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided, b)
more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this
program/plan element in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the
future.

VII.

Summary of Findings.
Topic
1. Deliver services according to the
values of the MHSA

Met
Standard
Met

Notes
Consumers and family
members indicate the
program meets the values
of MHSA

2. Serve the agreed upon target
population.

Met

Program improves timely
access to an underserved
population.
Funds services consistent
with the agreed upon
Service Work Plan.

3. Provide the services for which
funding was allocated.

Met

4. Meet the needs of the community
and/or population.

Met

Services are consistent
with the Three Year Plan

5. Serve the number of individuals
that have been agreed upon.

Met

Target service numbers
are reached.

6. Achieve the outcomes that have
been agreed upon.

Met

Program meets its
outcomes

7. Quality Assurance
8. Ensure protection of confidentiality
of protected health information.

Met
Met

No reported grievances.
HIPAA compliant privacy
policies in place.
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VIII.

9. Staffing sufficient for the program

Met

Staffing level supports
targeted service numbers.

10. Annual independent fiscal audit

Met

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to
deliver and sustain the services

Met

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with
generally accepted accounting
principles
13. Documentation sufficient to
support invoices

Met

No material or significant
weaknesses were noted.
La Clinica has significant
net assets to withstand
significant revenue
interruptions.
Experienced staff
implement sound check
and balance system.
Uses established software
program with appropriate
supporting documentation
protocol.

14. Documentation sufficient to
support allowable expenditures

Met

Method of accounting for
personnel time and
operating costs appear to
be supported.

15. Documentation sufficient to
support expenditures invoiced in
appropriate fiscal year

Met

No billings noted for
previous fiscal year
expenses.

16. Administrative costs sufficiently
justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program
17. Insurance policies sufficient to
comply with contract

Met

Contract budget reflects
indirect rate of 10%.

Met

Necessary insurance is in
place

18. Effective communication between
contract manager and contractor

Met

The County and program
meet regularly.

Review Results.

Met

The review covered the following areas:

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).
Does the program/plan element collaborate with the community, provide an
integrated service experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be
culturally competent, and be client and family driven.
Method. Consumer, family member and service provider interviews and
consumer surveys.
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Discussion.
Survey Results
We received 12 responses to the survey. The majority of the survey responses
were consistent with consumer interviews; namely, they show a positive
evaluation of the program; and that the program adheres to MHSA values.
Questions
Please indicate how strongly you
agree or disagree with the
following statements regarding
persons who work with you:
1. Help me improve my health and
wellness.
2. Allow me to decide what my own
strengths and needs
3. Work with me to determine the
services that are most helpful
4. Provide services that are sensitive
to my cultural background.
5. Provide services that are in my
preferred language
6. Help me in getting needed health,
employment, education and other
benefits and services.
7. Are open to my opinions as to
how services should be provided
8. What does this program do well?

Responses: n=12
Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly I don’t
Agree
Disagree know
4
3
2
1
n/a
Average score: 3.42 (n=12)
Average score: 3.42 (n=12)
Average score: 3.58 (n=12)
Average score: 3.42 (n=12)
Average score: 3.50 (n=12)
Average score: 3.54 (n=11)
Average score: 3.33 (n=12)
•
•
•
•
•

9. What does this program need to
improve upon?

•
•
•

Like that I can vent and be honest and get
support welcoming
Listen to my concerns and help me find the
doctor's I'm looking for to help me stay as
healthy as possible.
It helps me get better
Treat it's patients well
To show me benefits I am eligible for and
services available to me I didn’t know about.
Be on time
It could be better at keeping the appointment
times on schedule.
More connection on emotional & mental
health & help
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10. What needed services and
supports are missing?

•
•

11. How important is this program in
helping you improve your health
and wellness, live a self-directed
life, and reach your full potential?

Very
Important Somewhat
Important
Important
4
3
2
Average score: 3.50 (n=12)

12. Any additional comments?

•
•
•

Phone counseling when can't come in.
A little wider services
Not
Important
1

Very good service
Thankful for the help
Helps by keeping confusion to a low.

Consumer Interview
The consumer interviews took place at both the Pittsburg and Concord sites.
There were approximately 20 combined consumers interviewed at both sites.
The length of times that each family had been involved with the program varied
from three months to eight years. Consumers reported their initial referrals to the
La Clinica group sessions or counseling programs were through
recommendations from family and friends, or through their primary care they
were seeking at La Clinica. There were several participants who were seeking
counseling or group classes for help with individual needs, and the rest indicated
that they were there for parenting/family-related issues.
Overall, the consumers were very appreciative of the services provided by La
Clinica. They all felt very strongly that there was cultural grounding for them in
their treatment, and that their input was solicited and valued as part of the
treatment plan. During the interview, some of the other things specifically
identified as positives of the program were:
Overall, the families were very appreciative of the services provided. They all felt
that there was strong cultural grounding for them in their treatment, and that their
input was solicited and valued as part of the treatment plan. During the
interview, some of the other things specifically identified as positives of the
program were:
•

La Clinica was able to respond much better to needs than county programs.
The lack of bilingual providers in the County made it hard for consumers to
fully take advantage of services. Some stated that they didn’t feel
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•
•
•
•
•
•

comfortable with County translation services and this was perceived as more
of a barrier.
The wwhole family can receive services without worrying about residency
status for certain family members.
Confidentiality makes consumers feel like they can get help
Children are fully covered by insurance; program offers payment plans for
insurance costs.
Feel very well attended by doctors; clinicians make consumers feel very
welcome and comfortable.
Appreciate the “whole body” wellness approach – medical, emotional, etc.
Assistants at the front desk make staff feel welcome and like they are family.

These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values. However, the
families also identified some areas of improvement. Several consumers
mentioned they had a hard time getting regular appointments with clinicians, or
that the wait time was very long, sometimes two months. Consumers also
expressed the desire for more types of groups, such as children or teen groups,
pain management, women’s groups. Several also mentioned they would like
more “hands-on” or practical skill-building activities and classes. Lastly, several
consumers in both locations mentioned that transportation could be a barrier to
regularly attending groups or individual sessions.
Staff Interviews
Staff at both sites were interviewed in group sessions. Most were clinicians
providing direct services, with a few support staff. Staff described La Clinica’s
“no wrong door” approach to patient care as a key factor in the success of
reaching and treating their consumers. Presenting needs and stressors may
range from incarceration of a family member to fear of deportation, domestic
violence and substance use problems, to pain management and challenges
related to managing other chronic conditions. The intake process for new
consumers screens specifically for depression and a history of trauma. The
clinicians indicated that if their client needs longer term treatment, they will try to
refer them to County services through the Access Line; however, many of the
clients referred to County services come back to La Clinica due largely to the
County’s shortage of availability of bilingual staff. Staff indicated that they are
committed to providing whatever kind of care that a client may need, but also
revealed that there are gaps in service delivery due to the fact that there is a
much higher demand than what they can provide for in a timely way. It was also
mentioned that this may be largely due to the shortage of County bilingual
staffing, so many clients are staying longer in treatment, rather than moving to
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higher level of services through the County system of care. Lastly, staff stated
that having the mental health services in the same place as the medical services
makes linking their clients with appropriate services much easier. They
expressed that this linkage is a key attractor for consumers, and that this
presented an immense opportunity to educate the community they serve and
reduce stigma.
La Clinica strives to be a go-to place for linkage to a variety of resources, a
learning community where individuals learn how to manage their challenges, and
serve as a provider of direct prevention services.
Results. La Clinica delivers services according to the values of the MHSA. La
Clinica reaches out to a community with a high incidence of chronic and
traumatic stress that traditionally has lacked resources. The program delivers
programming at locations that are generally accessible (both culturally and
logistically) to participants; staff is culturally and linguistically competent and
maintains close ties to the community it serves. However, it is recommended
that the program work to build relationships with the County and other agencies
to help relieve some of the backlog and demand of services.
2. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Prevention and Early
Intervention, does the program serve individuals and families who are at risk for
developing a serious mental illness or serious emotional disturbance.. Does the
program serve the agreed upon target population (such as age group,
underserved community).
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.
Discussion. La Clinica’s target population is Contra Costa County Latino
residents at risk for developing a serious mental illness. Often these individuals
and families are underprivileged, subject to many high risk factors for developing
mental health problems, and from a community that has been underserved. The
program serves largely Hispanic families, many of whom are monolingual.
Results. The program serves the agreed upon target population.
3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.
Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service
provider interviews.
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Discussion. Monthly service summaries as well as semi-annual reports show
that the program is consistently engaged in outreach activities, is providing
support groups and individual navigation supports.
Results. The program provides the services for which funding was allocated.
4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed. Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
program planning process. Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year
Program and Expenditure Plan.
Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.
Discussion. Programming for Building Connection in Underserved Cultural
Communities was included in the original PEI plan that was approved in May
2009 and included in subsequent plan updates. The program has been
authorized by the Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current MHSA
Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan as well as the proposed PEI
regulations on prevention programs. Programs and strategies pursue timely
access to mental health services and linkages for individuals and families from
underserved populations. Interviews with service providers and program
participants support the notion that the program meets its goals and the needs of
the community it serves.
Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population for
which it is designated.
5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years.
Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.
Discussion. The program’s target service numbers for their Vias de Salud
program, as detailed in the Service Work Plan of their contract, is to conduct
3,000 depression screenings, 500 assessments and 1,000 follow-up services.
The target service numbers for their Familias Fuertes program is 750 screenings
for patients 0-17, 150 assessments and/or parent coaching sessions, and 200
children/caretakers served for individual sessions. Over the past three years, the
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program has often served close to their target, and at times, exceeded their
target numbers.
Results. The program serves the number of people that have been agreed
upon, and at times exceeds the target enrollment number.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of
life, and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.
Discussion. La Clinica has a few well-defined primary program objectives as
part of the service work plan. For Vias de Salud these include: early
identification of social isolation, mental distress, and severe mental illness;
increased access to mental health services; increased connection and linkage to
community services; reduction in social isolation and distress; improved
adjustment to life in the US for immigrants, improved family communication
across the generations. For Familias Fuertes these include: early identification
of severe mental illness; identification of behavior problems and parenting issues;
reductions in acuity of distress; increased access to mental health services;
increased connection and linkage to community services. The program has
provided an annual report summarizing their progress towards meeting their
program outcomes.
Results. Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives.
7. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision.
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.
Discussion. Contra Costa County did not receive any grievances toward the
program. The program has an internal grievance policy in place. Since the
program does not provide billable services, it not subject to utilization review.
Results. The program has a quality assurance process in place.
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8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol.
Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program’s implementation of a protocol for
safeguarding protected patient health information.
Discussion. La Clinica has written policies and provides staff training on HIPAA
requirements and safeguarding of patient information. Client charts are kept in
locked file cabinets, behind a locked door and comply with HIPAA standards.
Clients and program participants are informed about their privacy rights and rules
of confidentiality.
Results. The program complies with HIPAA requirements.
9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support.
Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.
Discussion. La Clinica’s mental health team has a sufficient number and type of
staff to support their operations. The experience level of the treatment team
varied from a few years of experience in mental health to this being their first
position in mental health. La Clinica encourages their team to take up to two
weeks of trainings per year, and has a reimbursement program for training.
However, one area of opportunity that staff indicated they often are busy with
client care and would like a little more space created to take advantage of the
training programs.
Results. Sufficient staffing is in place to serve the number of clients outlined in
the most recent Service Work Plan.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.
Discussion. La Clinica is a non-profit organization incorporated in 1971 for the
purpose of operating a comprehensive community health center. It provides a
full range of services, which include medical, dental, eye, mental health, health
education, nutrition, social support, pharmacy, laboratory and x-ray. The
organization’s mission is to improve the quality of life of the diverse communities
10

it serves by providing culturally appropriate, high quality and accessible health
care for all. The organization has a total operating budget of $97 million, and
operates more than three dozen locations in Alameda, Contra Costa and Solano
counties. Independent auditor reports from the last three years indicate that La
Clinica is not at risk for adverse fiscal consequences due to their fiscal and
accounting systems.
Results. Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2013-14, 14-15 and 15-16
were provided and reviewed. No material or significant findings were noted.
11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program or
plan element.
Method. Review audited financial statements and Board of Directors meeting
minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The organization appears to be operating within the budget
constraints provided by their authorized contract amount, and thus appears to be
able to sustain their stated costs of delivering PEI services for the entirety of the
fiscal year. La Clinica’s financial documents indicate that the parent organization
has been expanding incrementally each year, and both representatives from La
Clinica’s Finance Department articulated sound fiscal guidance and support
being provided to their field offices. The Board of Director meeting minutes
indicate regular attention to the organization’s fiscal well-being, as exemplified by
regular reports on the indicator of sufficient fiscal reserves to carry on operations
for over 90 days without revenue.
Results. Fiscal resources are currently sufficient to deliver and sustain services.
12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager.
Discussion. The Controller has been with La Clinica for 15 years, appears well
qualified, and described established protocols that are in place to enable a check
and balance system to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The organization uses La Clinica’s system-wide accounting software
program (Sege MIP) for all facets of personnel and administrative activities.
Results. Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
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13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.
Discussion. A randomly selected invoice for each of the last three years was
matched with supporting documentation provided by the agency. A clear and
accurate connection was established between documented hours worked and
submitted invoices. The two clinics operating in Contra Costa County are
federally qualified health centers (FQHC). The organization’s software program
apportions the FQHC and PEI contract revenues to fully fund the staff and
associated costs that provide mental health services in these two health clinics.
It appears that there is not duplicate billing to the two funding sources, and that
staff time and expenses dedicated to PEI activities are at least equal to or greater
than the amount billed to CCBHS.
Results. Uses established software program with appropriate supporting
documentation protocol.
14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the county.
Discussion. Line item personnel and operating costs were reviewed for
appropriateness. All line items submitted were consistent with line items that are
appropriate to support the service delivery.
Results. Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time and operating
costs appear to be justified and documented.
15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).
Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. Total contract billing was within contract limits, with no billing by
this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year.

12

Results. La Clinica appears to be implementing an appropriate year end closing
system.
16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The management and general costs reflected in the independent
auditor’s report support an indirect rate of 19.5%. The contract with CCBHS
budgets 10%. La Clinica staff indicated that they were under the impression that
CCBHS had instructed them to not exceed 10%. La Clinica staff were advised
that this is a cost based contract, and that they had the flexibility to charge up to
their approved rate as long as they did not exceed the total contract limit.
Results. At 10% the indirect appears reasonable.
17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.
Method. Review insurance policies.
Discussion. The program provided certificate of commercial general liability
insurance, automobile liability, umbrella liability, professional liability and
directors and officers liability policies that were in effect at the time of the site
visit.
Results. The program complies with contract insurance requirements.
18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
Results. Program staff and county communicate regularly and in recent months
increasingly to discuss outcomes and reporting requirements.
Discussion. The program has good communication with the contract manager.
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IX.

Summary of Results.
La Clinica is committed to delivering culturally and linguistically appropriate
mental health services to address the needs of the diverse populations it serves.
Their prevention and early intervention services seek to connect these families
and consumers to sustainable resources and supports. The La Clinica programs
adhere to the values of MHSA and serving their target population. The program
is meeting and often exceeding the outcomes detailed in their contract. La
Clinica appears to be a financially sound organization that follows generally
accepted accounting principles, and maintains documentation that supports
agreed upon service expenditures.

X.

Findings for Further Attention.
•

It is recommended that the County and program work towards
strengthening their relationships and other agencies to help relieve some
of the backlog and demand of services.

XI.

Next Review Date. May 2020

XII.

Appendices.

Appendix A – Program Description
Appendix B - Service Work Plan
Appendix C – Service Provider Budget
Appendix D – Organizational Chart
Appendix E – Independent Audit
XIII.

Working Documents that Support Findings.

Consumer Listing
Consumer, Family Member Surveys
Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
Progress Reports, Outcomes
Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation
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Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes
Insurance Policies
MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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Appendix A - Program Description
La Clinica de la Raza
Point of Contact: Leslie Preston and Nancy Facher
Contact Information: La Clinica Monument, 2000 Sierra Rd, Concord, 94518. (510)
535-6200 nfacher@laclinica.org
1. General Description of the Organization
With 34 sites spread across Alameda, Contra Costa and Solano Counties, La
Clínica has 46 years delivering culturally and linguistically appropriate health care
services to address the needs of the diverse populations it serves. La Clínica is the
8th largest federally qualified health center in California.
2. Program: Vias de Salud and Familias Fuertes (PEI)
a. Scope of Services: Vías de Salud (Pathways to Health) serves Latinos residing
in Central and East County with: a) 3,000 screenings for mental health risk
factors; and b) 1,000 assessment and early intervention services provided by a
Behavioral Health Specialist to identify risk of mental illness or emotional
disturbance; and c) psycho-educational groups facilitated by a social worker for
68 adults to address isolation, stress, communication and cultural adjustment.
La Clinica implements Familias Fuertes (Strong Families), to educate and
support Latino parents and caregivers living in Central and East County in
the healthy development of their children and youth. Project activities include: 1)
Screening for risk factors in youth ages 0-18 (1,000 screenings); 2) 250
assessment and/or parent coaching sessions provided to parents/caretakers of
children ages 0-18; 3) 48 parents/caretakers participating in individual
education/support sessions with a social worker to include psycho-education,
support and/or case management regarding psycho-social and behavioral health
stressors; and 4) 24 parents/caretakers participating in parent education and
support groups. The group utilizes the evidence based and culturally relevant
curriculum entitled Los Niños Bien Educados.
b. Target Population: Contra Costa County Latino residents at risk for developing a
serious mental illness.
c. Payment Limit: Vias de Salud: $144,139. Familias Fuertes: $112,611.
d. Number served For FY 14/15 All programs combined: 3252. Vias de Salud
provided 2488 screenings, 2087 behavioral health (BH) consultations, 63 clients
participated in groups. Familias Fuertes: 784 screenings, 175 BH consultations,
159 individual education and support, 14 parent group participants.
e. Outcomes: Vias de Salud - 91% of Participants of support groups reported
reduction in isolation and depression. Familias Fuertes - 100% of parents
reported increased knowledge about positive family communication, 100% of
parents reported improved skills, behavior, and family relationships.

Appendix B – Service Work Plan
I.

Scope of Services
La Clínica de La Raza, Inc. (La Clínica) will implement Vías de Salud (Pathways to
Health) to target Latinos residing in Central and East Contra Costa County with: a) 3,000
depression screenings; b) 500 assessment and early intervention services provided by a
Behavioral Health Specialists to identify risk of mental illness or emotional distress, or
other risk factors such as social isolation; and c) 1,000 follow up support/brief treatment
services to adults covering a variety of topics such as depression, anxiety, isolation, stress,
communication and cultural adjustment. La Clínica’s PEI program category is Improving
Timely Access to Services for Underserved Populations.
Contractor will also implement Familias Fuertes (Strong Families), to educate and support
Latino parents and caregivers living in Central and East Contra Costa County so that they
can support the strong development of their children and youth. The project activities will
include: 1) Screening for risk factors in youth ages 0-18 (750 screenings); 2) 150
Assessments (includes child functioning and parent education/support) with the a
Behavioral Health Specialist will be provided to parents/caretakers of children ages 0-18;
3), Two hundred (200) follow up visits with children/families to provide psychoeducation/brief treatment regarding behavioral health issues including parent education,
psycho-social stressors/risk factors and behavioral health issues.
As per California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 9, Division 1, Chapter 14, Section
3735, La Clínica will include the following strategies, and report outcomes on these
strategies as per County reporting requirements:
1. Be designed and implemented to help create access and linkage to mental health
treatment,
2. Be designed, implemented and promoted in ways that improve timely access to mental
health treatment services for persons and/or families from underserved populations,
3. Be designed, implemented and promoted using strategies that are non-stigmatizing and
non-discriminatory.

II.

Types of Mental Health Services/Other Service-Related Activities
During the term of this contract, La Clínica will assist Contra Costa Mental Health in
implementing the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA), by providing Prevention and
Early Intervention Services for Project #1, Building Connections in Underserved Cultural
Communities, with its Vías de Salud program; and Project #6, Parenting Education and
Support with its Familias Fuertes program.

III.

Program Facilities/Hours of Operation /Staffing
A. Program Facilities Location
(1) La Clínica de La Raza, La Clínica Monument
2000 Sierra Road
Concord, CA 94518
925-363-2000
(2) La Clínica de La Raza, La Clínica Pittsburg Medical
2240 Gladstone Drive, Suite 4
Pittsburg, CA 94565
925-431-1230

B. Contact Person, Phone Number, and Email
Mistique Felton, Planner
P.O. Box 22210
Oakland, CA 94623-2210
510-535-2973
mfelton@laclinica.org
C. Program Hours of Operation
La Clínica de La Raza will provide services simultaneously at two sites:
La Clínica Monument Medical Clinic: Monday – Friday: 8:30am - 5:30pm.
La Clínica Pittsburg Medical Clinic: Monday – Friday: 8:30am - 5:30pm
D. Program Staffing (including staffing pattern)
Contractor will employ 2.8 FTE to provide direct services.
This consists of: 0.15 FTE of an Integrated Behavioral Medicine Specialist, 1.0 FTE
of Medical Assistants, and 1.5 FTE Integrated BH Clinicians.
IV.

Volume of Services to be Provided
Contractor will provide 3,750 screenings and 650 assessment/consultation/early
intervention services, and 1,200 follow up consultation/brief treatment services on an
annual basis. Contractor shall attach to the billing a Monthly Contract Service
/Expenditure Summary (Form: MHP029) with the total number of services provided for
the month and the additional unduplicated (for the year) number of clients served during
the month.

V.

Billing Procedure
Contractor shall submit a Demand for Payment (Form: D15.19) for services rendered to
Contra Costa Mental Health. Contractor shall attach to the billing a Monthly Contract
Service/Expenditure Summary (Form: MHP029) with actual expenditure information for
the billing period.
Demands for payment should be submitted by mail to:
Jennifer Bruggeman, LMFT
Program Supervisor, MHSA/PEI
Contra Costa Mental Health
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 200
Martinez, CA 94553
Telephone: (925) 957-7548
Fax: (925) 957-5156

VI.

Outcome Statements
For the Vías de Salud program:
A. Reduce disparities and increase penetration of mental health services through
culturally and linguistically competent early identification, assessment and brief
intervention services integrated into the medical setting.
1. Early identification of social isolation, mental distress and severe mental
illness
2. Increased access to mental health services

3.
4.
5.
6.

Increased connection and linkage to community services
Reduction in social isolation and distress
Improved adjustment to life in the United States for immigrants
Improved family communication across the generations

For Familias Fuertes program, Project #6:
A. Parents of youth 0-18 will receive education and support to be strong parents and to
raise healthy and emotionally healthy children:
1. Early identification of severe mental illness.
2. Identification of behavior problems and parenting issues.
3. Reduction in acuity of distress.
4. Increased access to mental health services.
5. Increased connection and linkage to community services.
VII.

Measures of Success
The contractor will track the following MHSA outcome measures:
For the Vías de Salud program (Project #1):
A. 3,000 Depression Screenings will be completed annually by patients of La Clínica
primary care.
B. 500 Assessments will be provided by a Behavioral Health Specialists within the FY
16-17
C. 1,000 Follow up services will be provided by a Behavioral Health Specialists within
FY 16-17
D. 75% of participants who complete three or more follow up visits will demonstrate
reduction in mental health symptoms as measured through a standardized screen
(PHQ-9, GAD-7, etc) in FY 16-17
For Familias Fuertes program, Project #6:
A. 750 Behavioral Screenings of patients aged 0 – 17 will be completed during the 12month period by parents (of children 0-12) and adolescents (age 12-17)
B. A total of 150 Assessment and/or Parent coaching sessions will be provided for FY
16-17
C. 200 children/caretakers will participate in follow up individual/family education/brief
treatment sessions with a Behavioral Health Clinician
D. 75% of children/parents who complete four or more follow up visits will self-report
improvement in child’s symptoms, improvement in communication and/or parenting
in FY 16-17

VIII.

Measurement/Evaluation Tools
Contractor will provide documentation of measure outcomes using the following tools:
For the Vías de Salud program:
A. Tracking / La Clínica Practice Management Computer system and data reports
(NextGen).
B. Pre and Post Test: Participants of assessments/follow up visits will use standardized
scales PHQ-9 (Depression) or GAD-7 (Anxiety Scale)
For Familias Fuertes program:
A. Tracking / La Clínica Practice Management Computer system and data reports
(NextGen).

B. Pre and Post Test Assessment of children’s behavioral health symptoms will use
standardized clinical scales and parent education/support focused service will include
Retrospective Assessment of Family Relationship Questionnaire which includes child
and parent behavior questions. Outcome data will be collected through completed
pre/post test designed for use with curriculum Los Niños Bien Educados.
IX.

Reports Required
Contractor is asked to complete and submit a Semi Annual Reporting Form, on Jan 15,
2017 and July 15, 2017, to document the program’s progress in implementing the contract
and track statistical information (i.e. age, gender, ethnicity, language, and client residence)
of the target population(s) actually served, as defined by the Contractor and approved by
the County during contract award and negotiation process. The year-end report will also
contain report on outcomes.
Please submit all evaluation reports on a quarterly basis via email to:
Jennifer Bruggeman, LMFT
Contra Costa Mental Health
Email: Jennifer.bruggeman@hsd.cccounty.us
Telephone: (925) 957-7548

X.

Other
Promotional materials for the program should identify the funding source: “Funded by
the Mental Health Services Act in partnership with Contra Costa Mental Health”.
Contractor must attend the Regional Roundtable meetings sponsored by Contra Costa
Mental Health.

CONTRA COSTA MENTAL HEALTH -- MHSA -- Prevention & Early Intervention
#1:Vias de Salud (Pathways to Health/S3) and #6:
Familas Fuertes (Strong Families/S2)

Project # 1 and 6
Applicant
Name:
La Clínica de La Raza, Inc. (La Clínica)

4/18/2016
Total Dollars Requested:

Budget Period: July 1, 2016-June 30, 2017

S3 Budget (Adults)

S2 Budget

Combined S2/S3

Proj #1 (MHSA)

Proj #6 (MHSA)

COMBINED PROJ 1 & 6
(MHSA)

Total
Proj #1 Proj. #1
12 Proj. #6
Proj. #6
La
FTE
FTE 12 mo. Budget Clínica
mo. Budget
FTE
A. Expenditures
1. Staffing
Behavioral Medicine Consultants (L. Lessenger)
Medical Assistant (M. Escalante)
Medical Assistant (E. Murillo)
Integrated BH Clinician Monument (M. Gubser)
Integrated BH Clinician Pittsburg (A. Lopez)
Integrated BH Clinician Monument (A. Rangel)
BH Supervisor
Manager of Integrated Behavioral Health (N. Facher)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

9,853
13,000
10,865
17,249
24,064
12,525
7,717
9,050

Total Salaries

$

Employee Benefits (26.5% of Salary Costs)
Total Personnel Expenditures (Salaries plus Benefits)
3. Operating Expenditures
a. Professional Services
b. Translation and Interpreter Services
c. Travel and Transportation
d. General Office Expenditures
e. Facility rental & building maintenance
F. Utilities
f. Outreach Expense
g. Communications Expense
h. Other Program Related Expenses
Total Operating Expenditures
4. Administrative Costs
a. Overhead (not to exceed 10%)
TOTAL PROPOSED PROGRAM BUDGET

10 %

0.10
0.30
0.25
0.30
0.40
0.20
0.10
0.10
1.75

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

4,926
8,667
10,865
14,374
18,048
12,525
3,858
9,050

104,323

$

$
$

27,646
131,969

$
$

$
$
$

1,349
1,649

$

1,318

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

2,997

$

$

13,497

$

148,463

B. Other Revenue (estimated)
a. Medi-Cal (Primary Care Medi-Cal revenue)
b. Other: (specify)
e. Total Revenue

$
$

C. Total MHSA Operational Funds Requested

$

148,463

0.05
0.20
0.25
0.25
0.30
0.20
0.05
0.10
1.40

0.15
0.50
0.50
0.55
0.55
0.40
0.15
0.20
3.15

Total La
Clínica
12
mo. Budget

$
$
$

14,779
21,667
21,731

$
$
$
$

35,297
25,049
11,575
18,101

82,314

$

148,199

21,813
104,127

$
$

49,459
236,096

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,666
1,649
-

1,318

$

4,315

$

10,544

$

24,041

$

115,989

$

264,452

$

$

-

115,989

$

-

$

-

$

264,452

La Clinica de La Raza
Program: Familias Fuertes/Vias de Salud
7/1/2016-6/30/2017
Org Chart
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Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Program and Fiscal Review

I.

Date of On-site Review: May 30, 2017
Date of Exit Meeting: September 18, 2017

II.

Review Team: Stephanie Chenard and Gerold Loenicker

III.

Name of Program:

IV.

Program Description.
Lincoln was founded in 1883 as the region's first
volunteer-run, non-sectarian, and fully integrated orphanage. As times and
community needs evolved, Lincoln's commitment to vulnerable children remained
strong. In 1951, Lincoln began serving abused, neglected and emotionally
challenged children. Today, Lincoln has a continuum of programs to serve
challenged children and families throughout the Bay Area. Their community
based services include early intervention programs in several Bay Area school
districts aimed at stopping the cycle of violence, abuse and mental health
problems for at-risk children and families.

Lincoln
51 Marina Blvd, Suite D
Pittsburg, CA 94565

Lincoln works with Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) to provide
a Full Service Partnership Program for youth throughout the County. As part of
the Full Service Partnership, Lincoln utilizes the evidence based practice of
Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT). This is a comprehensive and multisystemic family-based outpatient therapeutic intervention for youth and
adolescents with co-occurring substance use and mental health disorders or who
may be at high risk for continued substance abuse and other problem behaviors,
such as conduct disorder and delinquency. The age range of the consumers
they serve is 11-19 (up until the consumer’s 20th birthday). Working with the
youth and their families, MDFT helps youth develop more effective coping and
problem solving skills for better decision making, and helps the family improve
interpersonal functioning as a protective factor against substance abuse and
related problems. Services are delivered over 4 to 6 months with weekly or
twice-weekly, face-to-face contact, either in the home, the community or in the
clinic. After care services are additionally available for up to three months after
the conclusion of the program.
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V.

Purpose of Review.
Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided,
b) more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this
program/plan element in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the
future.

VI.

Summary of Findings.
Topic
1. Deliver services according to the
values of the MHSA

Met
Standard
Met

Notes
Consumers and family
members indicate the
program meets the values
of MHSA

2. Serve the agreed upon target
population.

Met

Program only serves
clients that meet criteria
for the County’s children’s
full service partnership
admission criteria.

3. Provide the services for which
funding was allocated.

Met

MHSA only funds services
consistent with the Three
Year Plan

4. Meet the needs of the community
and/or population.

Met

Services are consistent
with the Three Year Plan

5. Serve the number of individuals
that have been agreed upon.

Met

Target service numbers
are reached.

6. Achieve the outcomes that have
been agreed upon.

Met

Program meets its
outcomes

7. Quality Assurance

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality
of protected health information.

Partially
Met

Met

Utilization review indicated
program meets most
quality assurance
standards
The program is HIPAA
compliant
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VII.

9. Staffing sufficient for the program

Met

Staffing level supports
targeted service numbers.

10. Annual independent fiscal audit

Met

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to
deliver and sustain the services

Met

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with
generally accepted accounting
principles

Met

13. Documentation sufficient to
support invoices

Met

No material or significant
weaknesses were noted.
Lincoln has significant net
assets to withstand
significant revenue
interruptions.
Staff is well qualified and
program has good internal
controls and monthly
review processes.
Organization provided
documentation that
reconciles to monthly
invoices.

14. Documentation sufficient to
support allowable expenditures

Met

Method of accounting for
personnel time and
operating costs appear to
be supported.

15. Documentation sufficient to
support expenditures invoiced in
appropriate fiscal year

Met

No billings noted for
previous fiscal year
expenses and
documentation supports
that funds are invoiced in
the appropriate fiscal year.

16. Administrative costs sufficiently
justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program
17. Insurance policies sufficient to
comply with contract

Met

Contract budget reflects
indirect rate of 16.4%.

Met

Necessary insurance is in
place

18. Effective communication between
contract manager and contractor

Met

The County and program
meet regularly.

Review Results.

The review covered the following areas:

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).
Does the program/plan element collaborate with the community, provide an
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integrated service experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be
culturally competent, and be client and family driven.
Method. Consumer, family member, and service provider interviews and
consumer surveys.
Discussion. The results of 11 consumer surveys were received. The majority of
the survey responses were consistent with consumer interviews; namely, they
show a positive evaluation of the program; and that the program adheres to
MHSA values.
Questions

Responses: n=11

Please indicate how strongly you
agree or disagree with the
following statements regarding
persons who work with you:

Strongly Agree
Agree

1. Help me improve my health and
wellness.

Average score: 3.28 (n=11)

2. Allow me to decide what my own
strengths and needs

Average score: 3.40 (n=10)

3. Work with me to determine the
services that are most helpful

Average score: 3.50 (n=10)

4
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Disagree Strongly I don’t
Disagree know
2

1

n/a

4. Provide services that are sensitive Average score: 3.50 (n=10)
to my cultural background.
5. Provide services that are in my
preferred language

Average score: 3.55 (n=11)

6. Help me in getting needed health,
employment, education and other
benefits and services.

Average score: 3.37 (n=11)

7. Are open to my opinions as to
how services should be provided

Average score: 3.55 (n=11)

8. What does this program do well?

•
•

•
•

Helped with school
Responds quickly to the needs of the child
and the family as a whole. Shows
compassion and respect for each family
members position. Willing to travel for the
needs of the family.
Being able to empathize and relate to
personal life and relationships. Also
appointments are well scheduled.
Acts like it really cares. Provides in depth
counseling.
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•
•

This program helps me communicate with
my family in a healthy manner.
I like being able to talk about my problems
and working on how to solve them.

9. What does this program need to
improve upon?

•
•

Help with housing
“My mom needs therapy.”

10. What needed services and
supports are missing?
11. How important is this program in
helping you improve your health
and wellness, live a self-directed
life, and reach your full potential?

•

Housing

Very
Important

Important

Somewhat
Important

Not
Important

4

3

2

1

Average score: 3.64 (n=11)
12. Any additional comments?

•

I really appreciate the help

Consumer Interview
Due to the nature of the services being delivered almost exclusively in the field,
and because of the time commitments of the families and consumers, we were
only able to meet with one consumer for a face-to-face interview. The consumer
had been referred to the program through juvenile probation and had just finished
the full six month program. She had tried several different programs before
Lincoln’s MDFT program, but none of the previous programs were a good fit for
her or her family’s needs.
Overall, the consumer was very appreciative of the services provided by Lincoln.
She felt that there was strong cultural grounding in the treatment plan, and that
input from her and her family was solicited and valued as part of the treatment
plan, empowering her to put in greater effort, and gaining confidence. During the
interview, some of the other things specifically identified as positives of the
program were:
• The family component was key to success – it helped repair and strengthen
family relationships, and was useful in helping to find common ground with
family members.
• The skills and coping activities learned helped to moderate emotions and
control anger.
• Flexibility – able to provide services in the community.
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These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values. However, the
consumer also identified some areas of improvement. She indicated that she felt
the program could benefit from more therapist availability. She also indicated
that she was interested in participating in some kind of mentorship program as
part of the next steps in her recovery. Determining linkages to organizations that
specialize in peer volunteer mentoring may be an opportunity for Lincoln to
explore.
Staff Interview:
Overall, five individual program staff were interviewed in two sessions:
a program management session and a line staff group interview (two clinicians
and a family advocate). Staff shared that the program receives their referrals
from several sources, primarily from juvenile probation, county children’s clinics,
or Seneca’s START program (as a next step in treatment). Lincoln’s MDFT team
provides care to the child and whole family, according to the MDFT evidencebased model, which focuses on larger goals for the program, then smaller goals
for each session. This is achieved through multiple sessions: individual
child/consumer sessions, parenting sessions, and whole family sessions. The
MDFT uses a “parents are the medicine” philosophy. Staff reported that
“collateral support” can be providing support to youth in court or in schools, and
providing support to the family to build and empower them. According to
program staff, one of the principal strengths of the program is the flexibility the
model allows, especially for the family advocate, who can be very responsive to
the needs of the family. Program management indicated that the model can be
used in a cross-over situation with youth who are receiving Educationally Related
Mental Health Services (ERMHS) as long as MDFT has the lead in treatment,
and reported that this cross-over appears to be working well, so far.
During the interview, staff also shared hindrances they faced in providing
services to the youth, such as youth aging out of the system of care while still in
the program. Turning 18 presents challenges working with parents or the foster
care system. Staff also faced difficulty coordinating aftercare, and linking the
youth to other county services. However, staff did indicate that overall they felt
like they were meeting the needs of their clients, and appreciated the flexibility to
tailor treatment to their client’s cultural background.
Results. Interviews with program participants and service providers as well as
program participant survey results all support that Lincoln delivers services in
accordance with the values of MHSA.
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2. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Community Services and
Supports, does the program serve children or youth with a serious emotional
disturbance. Does the program serve the agreed upon target population (such
as age group, underserved community).
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.
Discussion. The Lincoln MDFT Full Service Partnership program accepts
referrals from the County, often through the juvenile probation department,
clinics, and other full-service partnership providers. The MHSA chart review
conducted by the MHSA Program and Fiscal Review team confirms the agreed
upon target population for full service partnerships.
Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services also performs a utilization review on all
programs which bill Medi-Cal, including Lincoln. On July 6, 2016 a Level Two
Centralized Utilization Chart Review was conducted. For all of the charts
reviewed*, clients met medical necessity for specialty mental health services as
specified in the Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) Section 5600.3(a).
*(Please see longer discussion about this review in Section 7 below.)
Results. The program serves the agreed upon population.
3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.
Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service
provider interviews.
Discussion. Monthly service summaries and 931 and 864 Reports from
CCBHS’s billing system show that the Lincoln’s Full Service Partnership program
is providing the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.
Services include Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT) services, outreach
and engagement, case management, outpatient mental health services, crisis
intervention, and flexible funds. Both program staff and participants indicated
services are available on a 24-7 basis via an after-hours crisis phone line.
Results. The program provides the services for which funding was allocated.
4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed. Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
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program planning process. Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year
Program and Expenditure Plan.
Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.
Discussion. The Full Service Partnership programs were included in the original
Community Services and Supports plan that was approved in May 2006 and
included in subsequent plan updates. The program has been authorized by the
Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current MHSA Three-Year
Program and Expenditure Plan. Interviews with service providers and program
participants support the notion that the program meets its goals and the needs of
the community it serves.
Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population for
which they are designated.
5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years.
Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.
Discussion. Upon initial award of the children’s FSP contract, Lincoln’s MDFT
target enrollment number was 50 clients. The program launched in the 2013, and
at the end of their first full fiscal year of operation (13/14FY) they were reporting
serving 57 clients -- well within their target. They have continued to meet their
target numbers.
Results. The program serves the number of people that have been agreed
upon.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of
life, and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
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year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.
Discussion. Lincoln’s MDFT program started during FY 13/14, and started
reporting on early outcomes for that year. The program has a few well-defined
primary program objectives as part of the service work plan: reduction in
substance use or maintained abstinence, reduction in delinquency or maintained
positive functioning, and demonstrated improvement in functioning. The program
has provided an annual report summarizing their progress towards meeting their
program outcomes.
Results. Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives.
7. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision.
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.
Discussion. CCBHS did not receive any grievances associated with Lincoln’s
MDFT Full Service Partnership program. The program has an internal grievance
procedure in place and clients receive information on how to file complaints as
part of the agency’s Notice of Privacy Practices. The program undergoes regular
Level 1 and Level 2 utilization reviews conducted by CCBHS’s utilization review
teams to ensure that program services and documentation meet regulatory
standards. Level 1 and Level 2 utilization review reports indicate that Lincoln
generally meets documentation and quality standards.
On July 6, 2016, a Level Two Centralized Utilization Chart Review and a
Focused Review was conducted by CCBHS. The results show that charts
generally met documentation standards, with a few compliance issues, to include
incomplete or incorrectly completed forms. There were several other findings
related to disallowances for incomplete and late assessments, notes not being
completed in a timely manner, and incorrectly billed activities. Notably, however,
was a larger disallowance for two of the five charts reviewed for not meeting
service necessity for MDFT. Specifically, these two clients did not document a
co-occurring substance abuse disorder diagnosis. While the clients seemed to
have met medical necessity for a full service partnership, without documentation
of substance use, they did not qualify for MDFT under the Service Work Plan that
Utilization Review (UR) staff used as a guideline for allowable services.
Utilization Review staff provided feedback around standardized notes, defining
allowable billable services, and timeliness of completing notes.
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Lincoln submitted an appeal on July 27, 2016 for several of the disallowances,
with significant discussion on the substance use criteria. In their appeal, Lincoln
noted that an agreement was arrived at between the program and the CCBHS
Adult Program Chief and Children Program Chief that MDFT would no longer
need to require a co-occurring substance use disorder diagnosis to be treated, in
order to better serve the needs of the community. While this verbal arrangement
had clearly been made, the Service Work Plan with the County had not been
updated to reflect this change. The County denied their appeal, citing that they
could only go by the most current Service Work Plan at the time of the review. In
the same appeal document, Lincoln also submitted a plan of correction for the
remaining findings. At the time of this MHSA program review, Lincoln indicated
that the Service Work Plan had been updated to reflect this change in criteria and
services.
Results. The program has a quality assurance process in place. However, it is
recommended that Lincoln continue to work with the County to ensure that any
change in services is updated in the Service Work Plan on file in a timely fashion
to avoid any future disallowances. It is further recommended that the program
continue to provide training to their clinical staff on consistent clinical
documentation.
8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol.
Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program/plan element’s implementation of a
protocol for safeguarding protected patient health information.
Discussion. Lincoln has written policies and provides staff training on HIPAA
requirements and safeguarding of patient information. Client charts are kept in
locked file cabinets, behind a locked door and comply with HIPAA standards.
Clients and program participants are informed about their privacy rights and rules
of confidentiality.
Results. The program complies with HIPAA requirements.
9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support.
Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.
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Discussion. At the time of the site visit, Lincoln indicated that there had been
some recent turnover and they had two clinician vacancies on the MDFT team.
However, the nature of the team approach of MDFT evidence-based treatment
and program staff training allows Lincoln to provide the services outlined in the
Service Work Plan with current staffing, and they seemed to be on track to hit
their target number of clients served. The experience level of the treatment team
varied from a few years of experience in mental health to this being their first
position in mental health. Lincoln has a robust internal training program aimed at
identifying and addressing a variety of mental health issues in their training
process. However, one area of opportunity that staff indicated they would like to
receive more training in was on trauma-specific treatment.
Results. Sufficient staffing is in place to serve the number of clients outlined in
the most recent Service Work Plan.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.
Discussion. Lincoln is a not-for-profit agency impacts the lives of children and
families through evolving programs. The organization has a total operating
budget of $19 million and provides services for outreach and engagement, case
management, outpatient mental health and crisis intervention. Today, Lincoln
provides preventive, individualized, and comprehensive support services with a
focus on three core areas that disrupt cycles of poverty and trauma. These areas
are education – addressing obstacles that impact academic attendance and
achievement; family – strengthening stability and creating permanence; and wellbeing- improving resiliency and wellness.
Results. Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2013-14, 14-15 and 15-16
were provided and reviewed. No material or significant findings were noted.
11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program.
Method. Review audited financial statements and Board of Directors meeting
minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The Controller indicated that current expenses are exceeding
revenue due to staffing insufficiency, and when operating with a deficit, program
utilizes investments to stay afloat. The program has hired new staff and expects
to see changes this fiscal year that promotes growth in revenue. The outstanding
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balance for line of credit significantly increased for FY 15-16 but has decreased
for FY 16-17. There were no issues identified in the Board of Directors minutes
related to the program or organization’s fiscal position, indicating their operating
cash balance is sufficient and that they have a daily process to track cash flows.
Results. Fiscal resources are currently sufficient to deliver and sustain services.
12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager.
Discussion. The Controller has been with Lincoln for seven years, appears well
qualified, and described established protocols that are in place to enable a check
and balance system to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles.
Results. Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.
Discussion. A randomly selected invoice for each of the last three years was
matched with supporting documentation provided by the agency. A clear and
accurate connection was established between documented hours worked and
submitted invoices. A clear and accurate connection was established between
documented hours/types of mental health services and submitted invoices.
Lincoln’s FSP program is a specialty mental health service contract with CCBHS
that is based upon established rates and billed monthly according to the
documented level of service provided.
Results. Uses established software program with appropriate supporting
documentation protocol
14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the county.
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Discussion. Line item personnel and operating costs were reviewed for
appropriateness. All line items submitted were consistent with line items that are
appropriate to support the service delivery.
Results. Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time and operating
costs appear to be justified and documented.
15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).
Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. Total contract billing was within contract limits, with no billing by
this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year.
Results. Lincoln appears to be implementing an appropriate year end closing
system with reporting signed by the CFO.
16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. Lincoln produced its methodology that justifies the 16.4% indirect
rate charged to the contract. The controller indicated indirect costs are allocated
to the different programs based on actual personnel hours of each program.
Results. At 16.4% the indirect rate appears reasonable.
17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.
Method. Review insurance policies.
Discussion. The program provided commercial general liability insurance,
automobile liability, umbrella liability, professional liability and directors and
officers liability policies that were in effect at the time of the site visit.
Results. The program complies with contract insurance requirements.
18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
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Discussion. To date contract management duties have been centralized within
CCBHS’s children’s system. Moreover, the contract manager and Children’s
Chief meet with the program for regular monthly meetings.
Results. The program has historically had good communication with the
contract manager and is receptive to feedback and willing to address concerns
that may arise.

VIII.

Summary of Results.
Lincoln is committed to stabilizing youth with co-occurring substance use and
mental health disorders or who may be at high risk for continued substance
abuse and other problem behaviors, such as conduct disorder and delinquency.
Their services seek to help youth develop more effective coping and problem
solving skills for better decision making, and help the family improve
interpersonal functioning as a protective factor. The Lincoln Full Service
Partnership adheres to the values of MHSA and serves their target population.
The program is meeting the outcomes detailed in their contract. Lincoln appears
to be a financially sound organization that follows generally accepted accounting
principles, and maintains documentation that supports agreed upon service
expenditures.

IX.

X.

Findings for Further Attention.
•

It is recommended that Lincoln continue to work with the County to ensure
that any change in services is updated in the Service Work Plan on file in
a timely fashion to avoid any future disallowances.

•

The program should continue to provide training to their clinical staff on

•

consistent clinical documentation.

Next Review Date. May 2020

14

XI.

Appendices.

Appendix A – Program MDFT Fidelity & Outcomes Report
Appendix B – Program Description/Service Work Plan
Appendix C – Service Provider Budget
Appendix D – Yearly External Fiscal Audit
Appendix E – Organization Chart
XII.

Working Documents that Support Findings.

Consumer Listing
Consumer, Family Member Surveys
Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
County Utilization Review Report
Progress Reports, Outcomes
Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation
Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes
Insurance Policies
MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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APPENDIX A
Program MDFT Fidelity & Outcomes Report

MDFT Fidelity & Outcomes Report
Reporting Period:
Program Name Agency Name:
Date of Report:

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

From:
7/1/2016
To:
6/30/2017
Lincoln MDFT Program Contra Costa County - Lincoln Child
Center ( Standard Dose )
08/11/2017

Service Delivery Report
Percentage of therapy sessions held in clinic:
Average case duration (in months):
Total number of cases served during reporting period:
Total number of cases closed during reporting period:
Percentage of cases closed that completed at least 8 sessions
(Benchmark 85% or higher):

11.64%
5.32
63
49
95.92%

Percent Improvement Report

(Only includes cases closed during the reporting period)

Reporting Period:
Program Name Agency Name:
Date of Report:
Number of Closed
Cases:

From:
7/1/2016
To:
6/30/2017
Lincoln MDFT Program Contra Costa County - Lincoln Child
Center
08/11/2017
49

Benchmark 30% or more
---------------------------------1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Marijuana and/or Alcohol Use:
Hard Drug Use:
Delinquency/Crime:
Aggressive and Violent Behavior:
School Attendance:
Mental Health Functioning:
Family Violence:
Family functioning:
School Grades/Performance:
Peer Affiliation:

63
75
69
71
34
39
47
39
45
38

Behavioral Outcomes Report

(Only includes cases closed during the reporting period)

Reporting Period:
Program Name Agency Name:
Date of Report:
Number of Closed
Cases:

From:
7/1/2016
To:
6/30/2017
Lincoln MDFT Program Contra Costa County - Lincoln Child
Center
08/11/2017
49

Benchmark 80% or more
---------------------------------1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Percent of youth living at home/not in placement:
Percent of youth in school/working:
Percent of youth with no new arrests:
Percent of families with no new child abuse/neglect reports:
Percent of youth with marijuana/alcohol use less than 10 days per month:
Percent of youth with no hard drug use:
Percent of youth who never or rarely engage in illegal activities other than
7.
drug/alcohol use, shoplifting, trespassing, loitering, truancy, etc.:
8. Percent of youth who never or rarely engage in violent behavior:
9. Percent of youth with stable mental health functioning:

95.92%
77.55%
93.88%
97.96%
77.55%
85.71%
79.59%
91.84%
79.59%

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

Percent of youth who do not affiliate mostly or exclusively with anti-social
peers:
Percent of youth not at high risk for STDs and pregnancy:
Percent of families who are not characterized by poor family functioning:
Percent of families who do not regularly resort to family violence:
Percent of youth not on probation:
Percent of youth with no open child welfare case:
Percent of cases closed successfully:
Reason for treatment discharge:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Percentage met most treatment goals:
Percentage maximum gain:
Percentage discharged to juvenile justice facility:
Percentage moved out of area/unable to locate:
Percentage discharged to residential/inpatient treatment care:
Percentage youth/family dropped out of treatment before goals
were met:
Percentage unknown:

79.59%
91.84%
81.63%
95.92%
26.53%
95.92%
73.47%

53.06%
24.49%
4.08%
4.08%
2.04%
12.24%
0%

SUMMARY:
Implementation is related to Outcomes. In general, research shows that outcomes
improve as adherence to implementation requirements improve.
Service Delivery & Therapy Sessions:
Case Duration:
Case duration is within the target of 90 – 180 days at 5.32 months per case on average.
This shows that cases are being retained but also closed within a reasonable time
frame (not dragging cases out too long). Engagement (cases closed with 8 sessions or
more completed) was 95%, which is above the 85% target. These figures were based
on a total of 63 cases seen in the year and 49 closed, which is impressive.
Clinical Improvement
The Behavioral Outcomes at discharge were exceptional, with 12 of 15 indicators at or
above the 80% benchmark and another 2 indicators above the 75% mark. In particular,

96% of youth were still living in the home at treatment completion (this is outstanding),
and hence costly out-of-home placement was prevented. Additionally, 94% had no new
arrests and 92% were never/rarely engaging in violence. Family-level outcomes were
excellent, with 96% not resorting to violence, 98% having no child neglect or abuse
reports, 82% exhibiting decent family functioning, and 96% not having an open child
welfare case at discharge. An impressive 92% of youth were not at high risk for STDs,
94% had no new arrests, and 86% had no hard drug use at the end of treatment.
The majority of youth and families had stable functioning at discharge according to
virtually all indicators: having stable mental health functioning (80%), never/rarely
engaging in major criminal acts (80%), not affiliating mainly with anti-social peers (80%),
and less than 10 days of marijuana/alcohol use (78%). In addition, 78% were in school
or working at the end of treatment.
A remarkable 78% of cases met most or all of their treatment goals or maximum gains.
Only 2% were discharged to residential/inpatient treatment care, and only 4% were
placed in the juvenile justice system. Only 12% of youth and their families dropped out
of treatment before treatment goals were met. Wow!
Only one area was below 50%: only 27% were off probation at the end of treatment.
Overall, 74% of cases were reported to have closed successfully. This is exceptional!
Percent Improvement: The average percent improvement on key outcomes from Intake
to Discharge was outstanding, with ALL of the 10 key areas showing improvement of
30% or greater. This is unheard of even among other exceptional MDFT programs. The
greatest improvements were in the most important areas of crime, violence, and
substance use: there was a 69% improvement in delinquency/crime, 71% improvement
in aggression/violence, 63% average reduction in marijuana and/or alcohol use, and
75% reduction in hard drug use. Data also show a 47% decrease in family violence and
39% improvement in family functioning. School attendance increased by 34% and
school grades/performance improved by 45%. There was a 38% reduction in negative
peer affiliation and 39% improvement in mental health functioning. Outstanding!
RECOMMENDATIONS
We note exceptional improvements in ALL areas, most notably in terms of crime,
violence, and substance use. Outstanding outcomes were seen across domains.
Excellent outcomes were noted across the board, and no declines in any area were
seen. Wonderful work!
Overall, this is outstanding given the sheer number of cases seen, and the fact that this
was a challenging year in terms of staff turnover, training, and demands on supervisors.
We understand the supervisors and trainer were stretched thin, and therapists were
going above and beyond to meet the needs of their families. We commend the team for

excellent adherence to implementation parameters and outstanding clinical work and
outcomes with their cases!

APPENDIX B

Program Description/Service Work Plan

Lincoln
Point of Contact: Christine Stoner-Mertz, CEO
Contact Information: 1266 14th St, Oakland CA 94607, (510) 273-4700
chrisstoner@lincolnchildcenter.org
1. General Description of the Organization
Lincoln was founded in 1883 as the region's first volunteer-run, non-sectarian, and
fully integrated orphanage. As times and community needs evolved, Lincoln's
commitment to vulnerable children remained strong. In 1951, Lincoln began serving
abused, neglected and emotionally challenged children. Today, as a highly
respected provider of children's services, Lincoln has a continuum of programs to
serve challenged children and families throughout the Bay Area. Their community
based services include early intervention programs in the Oakland and Pittsburg
School Districts aimed at stopping the cycle of violence, abuse and mental health
problems for at-risk children and families.
2. Program: Multi-Dimensional Family Therapy (MDFT)
– Full Service Partnership CSS
Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT), an evidence-based practice, is a
comprehensive and multi-systemic family-based outpatient program for youth and
adolescents with co-occurring substance use and mental health disorders who may
be at high risk for continued substance abuse and other problem behaviors, such as
conduct disorder and delinquency. Working with the youth and their families, MDFT
helps youth develop more effective coping and problem solving skills for better
decision making, and helps the family improve interpersonal functioning as a
protective factor against substance abuse and related problems. Services are
delivered over 4 to 6 months, with weekly or twice-weekly, face-to-face contact,
either in the home, the community or in the clinic.
a. Scope of Services
• Services include but are not limited to:
• Outreach and engagement
• Case management
• Outpatient Mental Health Services
• Crisis Intervention
• Collateral Services

• Group Rehab
• Flexible funds
• Contractor must be available to consumer on 24/7 basis
b. Target Population: Children ages 11 to 19 years in West, Central and East
County experiencing co-occurring serious mental health and substance abuse
disorders. Youth and their families can be served by this program.
c. Payment Limit: $874,417
d. Number served: The program served 78 clients in FY15/16.
e. Outcomes: For FY 15/16:
• Reduction in incidence of psychiatric crisis
• Reduction of the incidence of restriction

Table 5. Pre- and post-enrollment utilization rates for 78 Lincoln Child Center, participants enrolled in
the FSP program during FY 15-16
No. preenrollment

No. postenrollment

Rate preenrollment

Rate postenrollment

%change

PES episodes

19

9

0.032

0.012

-62.5

Inpatient episodes

2

2

0.003

0.004

+33.3

Inpatient days

6

8

0.010

0.004

-60

JACS

25

15

0.037

0.022

-40.5

SERVICE WORK PLAN
Agency:
Contract #:
Fiscal Year:
Title of Program:

I.

Lincoln
2016/2017
Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT)

Scope of Services
Lincoln will provide a Children’s Behavioral Health Program funded by EPSDT and
MHSA, utilizing Multidimensional Family Therapy to 11-19 year olds experiencing
either co-occurring mental health and substance abuse related disorders or solely
mental health disorders that qualify youth for a Full Service Partnership MH
program. Youth and their families throughout Contra Costa County can be served
through this program. The length of treatment in the MDFT model ranges. On
average, treatment lasts 4-6 months, plus After-Care services lasting 6-8 weeks in
which MH services are provided as needed. Thus, MDFT length of treatment, which
includes After-Care services per the EBP model, ranges from 5-9 months in total.
Treatment may be extended past 9 months if the need is determined. If additional
services are required after 9 months, additional authorization would be requested.

II.

Types of Mental Health Service/Other Service-Related Activities
Lincoln will provide mental health services for 50-100 youth per fiscal year. Services
include, but are not limited to:
* Outreach and engagement
* Case Management
* Outpatient Mental Health Services
* Crisis Intervention
* Flexible Funding

On-Call Policy: Lincoln MDFT staff will provide 24 hour coverage for open cases in the MDFT
program. Families will be provided with a dedicated on-call number for the MDFT program and
encouraged to call that line for all after-hours and weekend emergencies. Clinicians and

supervisors will share on-call duties based on a rotating weekly schedule. Family Advocates will
not be included in the on-call coverage plan.
Program Manager will be responsible for creating and maintaining the schedule to
ensure coverage. To coordinate care, all clinicians will complete data forms (On-Call Notes)
about their cases, including all necessary emergency information and relevant case information,
including current interventions and strategies. On-Call Notes will be updated monthly to
provide up to date information. The on-call staff will have these forms compiled in an on-call
binder to assist them with any after-hour work. Emergency calls made to the on-call line will be
assessed for need and triaged. Possible on-call responses include phone de-escalation of
client/family crisis and/or assisting the client/family to call emergency services.
III.

Criteria for Eligibility of Services:
A. Admissions:
County Mental Health shall determine eligibility criteria to ensure clients meet
FSP level of need. All participants eligible to be enrolled will meet the following
criteria:
1. Youth 11-19 years of age and their families
2. Must meet medical necessity in accordance with Medi-Cal requirements
3. Must meet MDFT model criteria for appropriateness of fit
4. Must meet one of the following criteria:
a. On probation
b. Referred from the Contra Costa Mental Health Children’s System of Care
c. CALOCUS 17+
B. Discharge Criteria:
Participants will be discharged from services in the following scenarios: (1) The
youth has completed the course of treatment as determined by the MDFT model
(2) It is determined that the youth requires a higher level of care to address
substance use issues (3) The guardians and/or youth refuses to participate in
services by not being involved in the development of the Partnership Plan and/or
refusal to attend services, or (4) The guardian requests (either written or verbal
form) state that they no longer wish to have services for their child, or (5) The
youth and family moves away from the specified service area. For those youth
whose families move away from the specified service area, Contractor will work
with existing mental health programs and attempts to provide a smooth
transition for the child/family.

IV.

Program Facilities/Hours of Operation/Staffing
A. Program Facilities Location(s)
Main site will be located at 51 Marina Boulevard, 1st floor, Pittsburg, CA 94565.
Services will mainly take place in locations such as participant’s home and in the
community. On occasion, clients may be seen at the Pittsburg office for
assessments, family meetings, and/or other required appointments.
B. Contact Person and Phone Number
Kelly Collyer, Director Family Therapy, for Lincoln. (510) 867-1006.
Renee Lesti, Clinical Program Manager, for Lincoln MDFT. (510) 421-6866.
General information can also be obtained by calling Lincoln’s main offices at
(510) 273-4700.
C. Program Hours of Operation
Lincoln will provide services between the hours of 8:00a, and 8:00pm Monday
through Friday, with on-call services available 24/7.
D. Program Staffing (including staffing pattern)
Lincoln will employ a minimum of 10.25 FTE. In the MDFT Program Lincoln will
employ 8 FTE to provide direct service. Of the direct service positions, there are
6 MDFT Clinicians and 2 Family Advocates. 1 FTE and 0.6 FTE managers, and 0.5
clerical support.

V.

Service Documentation
Lincoln will provide documentation of services as determined by Medi-Cal and
MHSA requirements and will collaborate with County personnel to enter PSP data.
Assessments and treatment plans will be completed within the first 60 days. A
Discharge Summary will be completed at discharge. This information will be entered
into PSP and charts will be brought to CCCBHS Central County Clinic for Utilization
Review. Other components of evaluation and outcomes tracking are to be
determined in accordance with State and County guidelines.

VI.

Billing Procedure
Contractor shall submit to Mental Health each month a Demand for Payment (Form
D15) for services rendered.

Demands for payment should be submitted by mail to:
Helen Kearns, Project Manager
Contra Costa County Children’s Mental Health Division
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 200
Martinez, CA 94553
(925) 957-5125
VII.

Program Outcomes
A. Seventy percent of youth who complete treatment will have reduced substance
use or maintained abstinence.
B. Seventy percent of youth who complete treatment will have reduced
delinquency or maintained positive functioning in this target area.
C. Sixty percent of youth enrolled will demonstrate improvement in functioning.

VIII.

Performance Outcome Measures
A. CANS to measure functioning in multiple domains during Initial Assessment and
at discharge.
B. GAIN-Q3 to measure functioning in the following domains: school, work, stress,
physical health, HIV risk behaviors, mental health (internalizing and externalizing
disorders), substance use, crime and violence. Completed at intake, discharge,
and 3 months post treatment.
C. Youth and caregiver surveys to assess satisfaction with services.

APPENDIX C
Service Provider Budget

APPENDIX D
Yearly External Fiscal Audit

APPENDIX E
Organization Chart

Multi-Dimensional Family Therapy

CPO

Clinical Director
Director of
Family Therapy
Clinical
Program Manager
MDFT
Contra Costa
2 Family
Advocates
6 Clinicians

MDFT CC Employee List
Last Name
Caputo
Hodge
Hoover Collyer
Lesti
Rizzo
Rodriguez
Scott
Simpson
Ward

First Name
Zena
Jocelyn
Kelly
Renee
Gianna
Janitzia
Evangeline
Diatra
William

Department
540
540
540
540
540
540
540
540
540

